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To, 
The Members, 
Utkarsh India Limited 

Form No. MR-3 

Kolkata- 700016 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

'Arrjavv Square', 95A, Elliot Road, 4"Floor, 

DIVYA MOHTA 
29, Strand Road, Kolkata - 700001 

|Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014| 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31$" MARCH, 2024 

Mobile : 9830971919 

Email : dmohta92@gmail.com 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by Utkarsh India Limited (hereinafter called "the Company"), CIN: 
US1109WB199SPLCO70893. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

The Company's Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of secretarial and other records 
and for devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and 
Regulations. 

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the 
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March, 2024 generally 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on 31" March, 2024 to the extent applicable according to the 
provisions of: 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder and amendment thereto, 

IIL The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA') and the Rules made thereunder and 
amendment thereto; (Not applicable to the Company during the period under report) 

II The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder and amendment 
thereto, 
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IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder and 
amendment thereto to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings, 

DIVYA MOHTA 
29, Strnd Roa, Kolkata - 700001 

V. The shares of the Company are not listed and hence during the period under report. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
('SEBI Act' )and amendments thereto were not applicable to the Company, viz: -

Mobile : 9830971919 

Email : dmohta92 @gmail.com 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011 and amendment thereto; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018 and amendment thereto, 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 2021 and amendment thereto, 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021 and amendment thereto, 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations 1993 and amendment thereto regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

and amendment thereto. 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Securities) Regulations 2021 

amendment thereto. 
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 and 

VI I report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of 
the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied 
with the other laws as applicable specifically to the Company. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

() Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

2 

During the period under report the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
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I further report that, the Company has, in my opinion, complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and amendment thereto as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, with regard to: 

DIVYA MOHTA 
29, Strand Rod, Kolkata -700001 

(a) Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries therein, 

I further report that 
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(b) Forms, returns, documents and resolutions filed with the Registrar of Companies and the Central 
Government. 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors and its Committees that took place during the period under report were caried out in compliance 
with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information -and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 
the meeting. 

I further report that 

Majority decision is caried through unanimously and the dissenting members' views, if any are captured 
and recorded as a part of the minutes. 

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

necessary. 

As informed the Company has responded appropriately to notices received from various 
Statutory/Regulatory Authorities including initiating actions for corrective measures, wherever found 

The Company has filed A Scheme of Amalgamation registered on 25h July, 2024 before the Hon'ble 
National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata (CAA) No. 144/KB/2024, pursuant to the provisions of Section 
230-232 read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Twelve Companies namely, Wise Dealcom Private 
Limited, Yogmaya Vincom Private Limited, Precot Dealcomm Private Limited, Utkarsh Power Private 
Limited, Nayantara Distributors Private Limited, Cosmic Tracom Private Limited, Arundhati Suppliers 
Private Limited, Dover Tie Up Private Limited, Prestige Tie Up Private Limited, Raisin Tradecom Private 
Limited, Utkarsh Pipes Limited and Raj Laxmi Goods Private Limited (Hereinafter refered to as the 
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Transferor Companies") are to be merged with Utkarsh India Limited (Hereinafter referred to as the "Transferee Company 
This amalgamation is being carried out in order to consolidate business carried on by the group under one entity, strengthening of financial position with a wider capital base and increased leverage capacity of merged entity, optimum utilisation of resources, cost benefits etc., As per NCLT Order dated 2nd August, 2024, meeting of secured and unsecured creditors will be held on Thursday, 12h day of September, 2024 at the registered office of the Transferee Company. 

UDIN: A047040F001310654 

I further report that, to the best of my understanding, the Company, during the period under report, has taken appropriate steps with regard to any event/action having a major bearing on Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

Date: 19.08.2024 
Place: Kolkata 

Mobile:9830971919 

Email :dmohta92 @gmail.com 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed in Annexure - I which forms an 
integral part of this report. 

DIVYA MOHTA 

CS Divya Mohta 
Company Secretary in whole time Practice 

29, Strand Road 
Kolkata - 700001 

Dractising Company Secretary 
ACS 17217 

COP No.: 17217 
M. No.: A47040 

Peer Review: 2773/2022 
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To, 
The Members, 
Utkarsh India Limited 
"Arrjavv Square', 95A, Elliot Road, 4h Floor, 
Kolkata- 700016 

My report of even date is to be read al ong with this letter. 

2. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis 
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, 
I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 
the Company. 

test basis. 

Annexure - 1' 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 
is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on 

DIVYA MOHTA 

DIVYA MOHIA 
29, Strand Road, Kolkata-700001 

Mobile : 983097 1919 

Email: dmohta92@gmail.con 

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

29, Strand Road 
Kolkata - 700001 

Dractising Company Secretary 
ACS 17217 

UDIN: A047040FO01310654 
Date: 19.08.2024 
Place: Kolkata 

CS Divya Mohta 
Company Secretary in whole time Practice 

COP No.: 17217 
M. No.: A47040 

Peer Review: 2773/2022 
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E-mail : kolkata@dkcindia.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Utkarsh lndia Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial Statements of Utkarsh lndia Limited ("the Company"),

which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31't March,2}24,the Statement of Profit and Loss (including

Other Comprehensive lncome), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows

for the year then ended and notes to the financial Statements, including a summary of material

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the Financial

Statements").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lndian Accounting

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 20L5, as amended ("lnd AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in

lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March,2Ol4, its profit and other comprehensive

income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended'

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing

(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further

described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial Statements section of our

report. We are independerrt of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the

lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("lCAl") together with the ethical requirements that are

relevant to our audit of the financial Statements under the relevant provisions of the Act and Rules

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these

requirements and the lCAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial Statements.

lnformation Other than the financial statements and Audito/s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report,

Management Discussion & Analysis, Business Responsibility Report and Report on Corporate

Governance, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

t

t



Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon'

lnconnectionwithourauditofthefinancialstatements,ourresponsibilityistoreadtheother
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with

the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated'

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information; we are required to report that fact' We have nothing to report in this regard'

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the financial statements

The Company,s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in scction 134(5) of the Act

with respect to the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial

position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash

flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia,

including the lndian Accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant

rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records

in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls with reference to

financial statements that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that

give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error'

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company's ability

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or

toceaseoperations,orhasnorea|isticalternativebuttodoso.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting

process.

Auditor,s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it

exists. Misstatenlents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in

the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with sAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit' We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and



. obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion'

Theriskofnotdetectingamaterialmisstatementresultingfromfraudishigherthanforone
resultingfromerror,asfraudmayinvolvecollusion,forgery,intentionalomissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control'

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances' Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act' we

are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate

internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements in place and the

operating effectiveness of such controls'

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accountingestimatesandrelateddisclosuresmadebymanagement'

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to

continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are

required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial

Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,

future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern'

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the Financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation'

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

Internal control that we identify during our audit'

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable'

related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

t. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order'), issued by the Central

Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the

,,Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the

extent apPlicable'

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive lncome), the

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by

agreement with the books of accounU

this Report are in



(d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the lndian Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued there under;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31't March,2024

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31't March,

2O?4 f rom being appointed as a director in terms of section 764 l2l of the AcU

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial

Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report in "Annexure B" wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion'

(e) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and

protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31st March 2024.

iii. (a)The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than

as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested

(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the

Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities

("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that

the lntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries (Refer Note 54 (f) (i) to the financial statements);

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign

entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or

otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries (Refer Note 54 (0 (ii) to the financial statements).

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in

the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

Management representations under sub-clauses (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under

sub-clauses (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

iv. The Board of Directors of the Company have not proposed / paid any dividend for the year

ended 31't March, 2024,hence, no compliance of Section L23 of the Act was required.

v. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting

software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31't March, 2024

which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the

course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being

tampered with.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Com panies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account



using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is

applicable to the company with effect from April 7,2023, and accordingly, reporting under

Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial

year ended March 3L,2024.

W
^^e^qr,&Madhog#hia

3. With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the

requiremients of section rgZG6) of theAct, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid

by the Company to its direlctors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of

Section r97 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down

under Section r97 ofthe Act.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co.

Chartered Accountonts

Firm Registration No. 304138E

CA Aditya

Portner

MembershiP No.:304771

UDIN: 243047718K1MWV5404

Place: Kolkata

Date: 19th August 2024
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ANNEXURE "B'' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF UTKARSH INIDA LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Gontrols under Ctause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the lnternal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Utkarsh
lndia Limited ("the Company") as at 31"tMarch, 2024,in conjunction with our audit of the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for !nternal Financial Controls with reference to Financiat
Statements

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to Financial Statements ciiteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia ("lCAl").These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of lnternal
Financial Controls and both issued by the lCAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to Financial Statements and their operating effLctiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectirieness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to the
Financial Statements.



Annexure "B" to the IndependentAuditor's Report
(Referred to under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" in
Paragraph of our Independent Auditors' report of even date)

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Financia! Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process designed to

provide reisonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

Financial Statements for externil purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements includes

ihose'policies and proiedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;(2) provide

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial

Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and

expenditures of the Company Jre Oelng made only in accordance with authorisation of the

management and directors oi the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding

prereition or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets

that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements'

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Financial

Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial

Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management, override of controls,

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any

evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future periods

are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements may

become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls

system with reference to Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to

Flnancial Statements were operating effectively as at 31't March 2024,based on the internal control

over financial reporting criteria establisned by the Company considering the essential components of

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial

Reporting issued bY the lCAl.

For D. K. Chhajer & Co,

Chartered Acrountrnt,
Firm Registration No. 304138E

6r, Mrfu.J"l^',.
CA Aditya Madhogarhia

Portner

Membership No.:304771

UDIN: 24304771BK|MWV5404

Place: Kolkata

Date: 19th August 2024
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements" of our lndependent Auditors' report of even date)

(i) (a) (i) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(ii) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its

Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified at

reasonable intervals of time. ln our opinion, this physical verification is reasonable having regard

to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, certain

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the Management during the year

and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties as disclosed in Note 3 on Property,

plant and equipment to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both during

the year. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(i) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on

or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami

Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our

commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in financial statements

does not arise.

(ii) (a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the management during the year and in

our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedure and coverage as followed

by management were appropriate.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 500 lakhs, in aggregate,

at various points of time during the year from banks on the basis of security of current assets. ln our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns or

statements comprising stock and book debt statements and statements on ageing analysis of the

debtors filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the books of account of the

Company of the respective quarters
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(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or

granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited

liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) (a) to

3(iii) (0 of the Order are not applicable.

(iv) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by

us, the Company has neither granted any loans or made investments nor provided guarantees or

securities in contiavention of provisions of Section 185 of the Act. The Company has not granted any

loans or made any guarantees or securities to the parties covered under Section 186 of the Act. ln respect

of investments made by the company, the provisions of section 186 of the Act have been complied with'

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public

within the meaning of sections 73,74,75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under. Accordingly,

reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable'

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the company pursuant to the Companies (Cost

Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central government under sub section

(.1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed

cost records have been made and maintained. we have, however, not made a detailed examination of

the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company

examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues,

including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,

service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues, as

applicabte, to the appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of

the aforesaid statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March, 2024lor a period of more than six months

from the date theY became PaYable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of duty of

customs, income tax, sales tax, service tax and value added tax which have not been deposited with

the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except the following dues which have not been

deposited by the Company on account of disputes:

Nature of Statue Nature of the
Dues

Amount (Rs. ln

Lakhs)

Period to which

amount relates
Forum where disPute

is pending

The Central
Excise Act

Excise
Duty/E.Cess/SHE
Cess on

consignment Sale

18.38 2006-07 to 2007-
08

Custom, Excise &
Service tax Tribunal
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(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company examined by

us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income

during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), which were previously

not recorded in the books of account. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(viii) of the Order is not

applicable.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined

by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of

interest to any lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial

institution or government or any government authority'

(c) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been

applied, on overall basis, for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(d) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to

us, funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes by the Company'

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, and procedures performed by us, we report

that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the

obligations of its subsidiary. Further, during the year ended 31st March, 2024,the company did not have

any associate or joint venture as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, and procedures performed by us, we report

that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.

Further, during the year ended 31st March, 2024,lhe company did not have any associate or joint

venture as defined under the Companies Act, 2013'

(x) (a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including

debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not

applicable.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible

debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xXa) of the Order is not applicable'

(xi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or on the

Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the

Management.

(b) We have not come across of any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company during the

course of audit of the financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024, accordingly the provisions

stated in paragraph (xixb) of the order is not applicable to the company
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(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no whistle blower complaints were

received by the Company during the year and upto the date of this report.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,

reporting under Clauses 3(xii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related

parties are in compliance with the Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of

such related party transactions have been disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial statements as

required under Accounting Standard 18 "Related Party Disclosures" specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(Refer note no. 42 of the financial statements).

(xiv) (a) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has an

internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.

(xv) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered

into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, the

reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the Act under Clause 3(xv) of the Order is

not applicable.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-iA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act'

1934. Accordingty, the requirement to report on Clause 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year.

Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core lnvestment Company (ClC) as defined in the regulations made by the

Reserve Bank of lndia. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group (as

per the provisions of the Core lnvestment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have

any ClC. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding

financial year.

(wiii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, reporting under

Clause 3(xviii) is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of financial ratios,

ageing ind expected date of realization of financial assets and payment of liabilities, other information

accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of Board of Directors and management plans, we

are of if,e bpinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report and the Company is

capable of meeting its liabilities existing as the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a

period of one year from the balance sheet date
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(xx) (a) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and

there are no unspent csR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in schedule Vll to

the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of subsection (6) of section 135 of

the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

for the year.

( b) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of other than

ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in

schedule Vll of the companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section

135 of the Act.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial

statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report'

ForD. K. Chhaier & Co.
Chaftered Accountants
Firm Reoistration No. 304138E

qn,;t^^t-<",t-i
ci darya maodogarfiia
Partner
Membership No.: 304771
UDIN: 24304771 BKlMWV5404

Place: Kolkata
Date: 19th August 2024

CHAfrGREO



Utkarsh India Limited
CIN : U51109WB199SPLCo70893

Balance sheet as at 31st March,2024
Q.lr+e:l

Particulars Notes

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 3 lst March, 2023 As at 0lst Aprll, 2022

As per IND AS

( t ln Lakhs)

As per IND AS

( { ln Lakhs)

As per IND AS

( { tn Lakhs)
ASSETS

Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(bJ Other Intangible assets

(c) Capital Work-in Progress

(dJ Right of use Assets

[d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Other Financial Assets

(eJ Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
(a) Inventories
[b] Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and Cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other t}tan Cash & Cash Equivalents
(iv) Other Financial Asset

fcl Other current assets
Total current assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equitv
[a] EquiW Share canital

[bJ Other Equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current llabllities
[a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease Liabilities

[iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(c) Provisions
Total non-current liabllltles

Current llabllltles
fal Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings
Iii) Lease Liabilities
(iii) Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and Small
Enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises.

(iv) Other financial Iiabilities
fblCurrent tax Liabilities
fcl Other current liabilities
fd) Provisions
Total current llablllties

Total Equity and Liabilities

Material Accounting Policy, Information

4

5

6

7

8

10

11

72

13

!4
15

16

t7
18

19
20

21
9

22

23
z4
25

26
27
28
29

7-2

31,557.82

188.02

202.84

s,295.42

72.7.97

470.02
452.27

27,770.49

8.15

465.53

4,400.58

777.35
292.24
762.52

25,150.90

17.24

296.70

4,197.32

103.35
228.80
165.25

34,254.34

37,541.43

24,366.19
350.54

7,793.64
202.A8

1.24O.O2

33,217.36

37.945.84

23,079.46
667.27

1,871.85
496.43

?.062.11

30,1S3.S7

35.977.5+

17,955.95
443.01

1,533.73
504.15
948.69

65,534.70 66,056.90 s?,303.07

1o3,749.o4 99,274.26 a7.456.64

1,787.05

35,570.60

7,787.05

30,377.80

L,787.05

25,549.03
37,357.65

9,974.63
3,556.19

1.00
t,605.72

329.87
t5,476.4L

20,736.36
s66.27

25,210.04

1,305.63
635.58

2,257.97
248.75

32,L64.45

7t,372.86
3,005.3 2

1.00
7,404.92

227.3r
L6,OLL.4t

27,549.73
270.73

26,921.84

7,t81.92
195.53
792.44
185.81

27,336.O8

11,806.45
2,983.90

1.00
2,497.59

776.09
17,459.03

17,362.47
237.60

27,626.96

1,609.89
378.02

1,327.22
119.37

50,954.58 51,098.00 42,66t.53

103.749.O4 99.274.26 47,456.64

The accompanyinq notes form an int ergral pan of tt* fi*r,tciat
AS per our repon or even oate attacneo.

ForDKChhajer&Co.
Choftered Accountonts

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FRN 304138E

W,rttn^Sy"t
Sunil Bansal
Chairman & Managing Director

CA Adltya Madhogarhla
Partner
Membership No.304771

DrN - 00297335

Utkarsh Bansal
CFO & Executive
DIN - 05310243

ar.->41

Place: Kolkata

Date : 19th August,2024
UDIN : 24304771 BKIMWV5404

Saniay Kumar Gupta

Company Secretary
FCS - 5923

g?-0 )6-----(C,+-,-



Utkarsh India Limited
CIN : U51109W81995P1C070893 Q-x*x=r:

2of Profit and Loss for the ended 31st
For the year Ended
3lst March, 2024

For the year Ended
31st March, 2023

Notes
As per IND AS As per IND AS

227,607.50
70

1,93,084.23

4,498.90
5,82r.73
1,855.01

27,t63.79

t83,796.97

(2,170.84)

3,437.56
5,t75.66
L,783.46

22,043.76

155,525.98

531.08

22 965.50

1,896.85
208.72

114.00

L,382.21
(1.,087.42)

(33.8s)

8.52

2.97

[0.7s)

2.22

Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed
(bJ Changes in inventories offinished goods, Stock-in-Trade

and work-in- progress

[c) Employee benefits expense
(d) Finance costs
(e) Depreciation and amortization expense
(f) Other expenses

Tax expenses
(a) Currenttax
(b) Defered tax

(c) (Excess)/Short provision ofTax relating to Earlier Years

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to prolit or loss
[i) Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan
(ii) Change in Revaluation Surplus

Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

[b) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified
to profit or loss

Total other comprehensive income/fioss)
Total Comprehensive Income /(loss) for the year

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation):

(1) Basic & Diluted (in { )

Expenses

before tax

tax expenses

Profit/[oss) for the period

Material Information

Comprehensive Income

[a) Revenue From Operations
(b) Other Income
Total Income

9

32

33

34
35
36
37

40

7-2
29 27

The accompanying notes form an intergral part ofthe Financial Statements.

A-)

S*-d-3h----<c+'

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors

Sunil Bansal

Der our report ofeven date attached.

Place: Kolkata
Date : l.9th Au gttst, 2024
UDIN : 24304771BKIMWVS404

Sanjay Kumar Gupta
Company Secretary

Utkarsh Bansal
CFO & Executive Director

DIN - 05310243

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 00297336

Particulars

[ { in I-akhsl

30
31

229.4tl? 20 1

1

7 L?'7 aaa 2A

?. ?1q \7 ?qL 7c

q ?te t2 L R?€, qq

125.33)
q lq? e /L R?R 7'i

ForDKChhaier&Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 304138Eq,;i8,4.
CAAditya Madhogarhia
Partner
Membership No.304771



Utkarsh India Limited
CIN : U51109WB1995PtC070893
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

( { in Lakhs)

Q.x:e*l

For the year Ended
31st March, 2024

For the year Ended
31st March, 2023

Particulars

A: Cash Flow From Operatint Activities

Proflt / (Loss) before Tax
Adiustments For:
DeDreciation / Amortisation (Net'l

Provision for Tax
Deferred Tax Liability
Provision for Employee Benefit Expense

Interest Exp€nse
Profit on sale ofAssets
Allowance for expected credit losses
Fairvalue of investment
Remeasurement IGain)/Loss on net defined benefit Plans

Dividend Received

lnterest Income

Operating Profit / (Loss) Before Working Capital Changes

Movements in Working Capital :

Decrease / (lncrease] in Trade Receivables

(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Current Assets

Decrease / (lncrease) in Inventories
Decrease / 0ncrease] in Bank balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents

Decrease / (lncrease) in Prepaid Expense

Decrease / 0ncrease) in Other Financial Assets

lncrease/(Decreasel in Other Financial Liabilities
Increase/(DecreaseJ in Other current Liabilities
Decrease / (lncrexe) in Advance to Suppliers

Increse/(Decrease) in Advance Received from Customers

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables, other Liabilities and Provisions
Increase/(Decrease) itr Provisions
Cash genemted fuom Operating Activities

Direct Tiles paid ( net ofrefunds)

Net Cash getrerated from Operating Activities (A)

Br Cash Flow From lnvesdnS Actlvldes

Purchase of ProDerty Plant and Equipment
(Purchase)/Sale of Computer Software

Capital Advances (Refunded)/Taken

Security Deposit (Refu nded)/Taken

Purchde oflnvestments in Mutual Fund

(Loss)/Profit on sale ofFixed Assets

Decrease in Bank balance other than C&CE

Dividend Received

lnterest received

Net Cash generated (used in) InvestingActivities (B)

C: Cash Flow From Flnanclng Actlvitles
Proceeds from issue ofequity share capital(including premium)
Increase in Financial Lease Liability
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Current Borrowings
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Non Current Borrowings
Interest Paid
Net Cash generated (used ln) FlnanclngAcuvldes ( C)

Net lncease / (Desease) ln Cash and Cash Equtvalents (A+B+c)
Cash and Cash Equlvalents as at the beglnnln8 ofthe year
Cash and Cash Equlvalents as at the end ofthe year

Components ofcsh and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

Balance with Scheduled Banks on:
Curent Account
Fixed Deposit Account

3,2a9.91
(80.s1)
285.78
(10.s7)
(2s.33)

7,437.70

1,855.01

200.20

(s13.2s)

12,434.94

(1,632.51)

1,45L.16

404.41

78.21

(16s.e1)
293.55

123.72

993.27
(s03.16)
466.79

(1,71 1.80)

72,407.57

9,741.84

[5,403.71)
(r7e.87)

(zee.7s)

(177.78)

80.51

513.25

(5,407.35)

856.34
(813.37)

[1,398.23)

(3 10.67)

5,121.34

\743.46

(8s7.

[338.1

7.72
(427.

4.t9

(s38.

(477.

3,214.66

5,294.44

177.66

3.08

2.74

1.36

342.73

278.20
443.O7

L7.84

82.47

12.09

46.29

(4,s03.

54.55
4,747.26

[433.s8)

661.21Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31st March 20z4(Refer Note 13) 3 s0.54

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements,
Previous year figures have been regrouped /rearranged wherever necessary to confirm to this year classification.

UDIN : 2430477 1 BKIMWVs404

^L
3041

(,

as set out in AS -7,

Membership No.304771

Sunil

per our repon ofeven date attached. Forand on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors

Company Secretary

Saniay Kumar

DKChhaler&Co.
Accountants

Note: The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared

Chaiman & Managing Director
DtN - 00297336

Utkarsh Bansal
CFO & Executive Director

DIN - 05310243

Placer Kolkata

Date : 19th August, 2024 e{*

2,304.93

261.80

2.22

f\
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1

Utkarsh India Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Corporate information
Utkarsh India Limited ("the Company") is a public limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated on Sth April, 1995 under the
provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of Black /G.1. Pipes, Poles, Steel
Structure, Metal Beam Crash Barrier, M.S.Wire, Solar Structure, Railway Sleepers being its Engineering Products segment and
CPVC,UPVC,PVC,SWR Pipes & Fiitings, HDPE Pipes, Garden Pipes being its Polymer segment. The manufacturing units are located at
fangalpur (Howrah) & Gurap (Hooghly) and the Company is selling its product on pan India basis and export to many foreign
countries. The Company is also engaged in erection and installation ofits product in few cases.

Basis ofPreparation and Material Accounting Policies
The material accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below Such

accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements and in preparing the

opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April L,2022 for the purpose oftransition to Ind AS, unless otherwise indicated.

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is lndian Rupee (t) which is the currenry of the primary economic

environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in { and all values are rounded to the nearest

Lakhs ({ 00,000), except where otherwise indicated.

z.la Statement of Compliance
Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) as per the Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 ( as amendement for time to time ) notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the'Act')
and other relevant provisions ofthe Act.
For all periods upto and including the year ended 31st March 2022, the Company prepared its Financial Statements in accordance
with requirements ofthe Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 , as amendement
from time to time and other provision for the act (herein after refer to as previous GAAP)
These financial statements are the first financial statements under Ind AS. The date oftransition to Ind AS is 1st April, 2022.Details of
the mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions applied / availed by the Company and the principal adjustments along with
related reconciliations are provided in Note 50.

2.2 Historical cost convention
The Financial Statements have been prepared under going concern basis at historical cost convention on an accrual basis, except for
the followig items:
(i) Financial instruments that are measured in terms of relevant Ind AS at fair value / amortized cost at the end of each

reporting period.
(ii) Inventories are valued at lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value.

2.3 Current versus Non-current Classification
The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as

current when it is:

. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

2
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A liability is current when:
. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current'
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

Use of estimates
In preparing the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, management has made estimates, judgments and assumptions which

affectthe application ofaccounting policies and the reported amounts ofassets and liabilities as atthe date offinancial statements

and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual results may differ from these estimatcs.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting are recognized prospectively.

Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the pcriod in which changes are made and, if material, their affects

are disclosed in the notes to financial statements.

Critical Estimates & iudgements
The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are as follows:

. Estimation of defined benefit obligation
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial

valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These

include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the

valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions

are reviewed at each reporting date,

' Impairment of trade receivables
The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The

management uses iudgment in making thcse assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the

company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end ofeach reporting period,

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and othcr key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the

reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing as material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within next financiaI year.
i. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values, ifany, ofproperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets at
the end of each reporting period. During the current financial year, the management determined that there were no changes to the

useful lives and residual values ofthe property plant and equipment and intangible assets.

ii. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities.
Provisions and Contingent Liabilities are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

2,5 Property, Plant and Equipment
i. Recognition and initial measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase

taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its
intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.
The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate

Ctuf,TENED

items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
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Properties in course of construction for production, supply or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. All the direct expenditure related to implementation including incidental expenditure
incurred during the period of implementation of a projec! till it is commissioned, is accounted as Capital work in progress (CWIP)

and such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

ii. Subsequent expenditure
The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is

probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the company and its cost can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount ofthe replaced part is derecognised, The costs ofthe day to day servicing ofproperty, plant and equipment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

iii. Disposal
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net within other income/ expenses in the
statement of profit and loss.

iv. Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided under the Straight Line Method (SLM) at the rates determined based on
the useful life of the respective assets and residual values in accordance with Schedule II of the Companies Acl., 20\3. The residual
values are not more than 57o of the original cost of the asset.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset category Management estimate of
useful life

Useful life as per Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013

Buildings
Plant and Machinery
Office equipment
Furnitures and fixtures
Vehicles
Electrical Installation
Software
Computer

30 -60 Years
15 -20 years

5 years

10 years
8-10 Years

10 Years
3 - 5 Years

3 Years

30- 50 years
1.5 years

5 years

t0 years
10 years

10 Years
5 Years
3 Years

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment acquired/disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with
reference to the date of addition/disposal.

Depreciation on PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
v. De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment or its components is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition ofthe asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset) is included in the statement ofprofit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

2.6 Intangible assets

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets are recognised when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the company, it is probable that the future

economic benefis that are attributable to the asset will flow to the company and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.lntangible

assets are recognised when the asset is identifiable, is within the control of the company, it is probable that the future economic

benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the company and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.
ii. Subsequent measurement
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it
relates.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cos! less its residual value. Amortisation is
recognised in statement of profit and loss on a written down value basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the
date that they are available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits embodied in the asset.
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2.7 Impairment of Non Financial Assets

Tangible and lntangible assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for impairment. In case events and circumstanccs indicate

any impairment, recoverable amount of assets is determined. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

whenever the carrying amount ofassets either belonging to Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or otherwise exceeds recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of assets fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. In asscssing valuc in use, thc

estimated future cash flows from the use of the assets are discounted to their present value at appropriate ratc.

lmpairment losscs recognized earlier may no longer exist or may have come down. Based on such assessment at cach reporting

period the impairment loss is reversed and recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In such cases the carrying amount ofthe

asset is increased to the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that have been determined, net of depreciation,

had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

2.4 lnventories
lnventories are valued at the lower of cost and the net realisable value. Cost is computed on a 'First ln First Out' basis. The cost of

finished goods and stock in process comprise raw material, direct labour, other direct costs and related production ovcrheads up to

the relevant stage of completion incurred in bringing the inventory to present location and condition. Bought out items are valued at

cost of purchase. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less thc estimated cost of

completion and cstimated cost ncccssary to makc the sale.

2.9 Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to

control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration'
Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, exccpt for short-term leascs and leases of low-

value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use

the underlying assets.

i. Right-of-use assets
The company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for

use). Right-of-use assets arc mcasured at cost, less any accumulated depreciaon and impairment losses, and adiustcd for any

remeasurement oflease liabilies. The cost ofright-of-use assets includes the amount oflease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs

incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-usc assets are

depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term and the estimated useful lives ofthe assets, The right-of-usc asscts arc also

subiect to impairment.
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ii. Lease liabilities
At the commencemcnt date of the lease, thc company recognises lease liabilities measured at thc present value of leasc payments to

be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease

incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under rcsidual

vatue guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price ofa purchase option reasonably certain to be cxerciscd by the

company and payments of penalties for terminang the lease, ifthe lease term reflects the company exercising the option to terminate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce

inventorics) in the period in which the event or condion that triggcrs thc payment occurs. In calculating the present valuc oflease

payments, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the

lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilies is increased to reflect the accretion of

interest and reduccd for the lease payments made. In addion, the carrying amount of lease liabilies is remeasurcd if there is a

modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g,, changes to future payments resulting from a change in

an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment ofan option to purchase the underlying asset.

2.lO RevenueRecognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and thc rcvenue can be

reliably measured,

(i)Revenue from sale ofgoods is recognised when control ofthe goods has transferred, being when the products are dclivered to the

customer. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped or delivcred to the specific location as the case may be, the risks of
loss has been transferred, and either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, or the Company

has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Sale of products include related ancillary serviccs, if any.

Goods are often sold with volume discounts based on aggregate sales over a 12 months period. Revenue from these sales is
recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts, using the most likely method, and revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal will not occur. A liability is recognised for expected volume discounts payable to customers in
relation to sales made until the end ofthe reporting period. No element ofsignificant financing is deemed present as the sales arc
generally made with a credit term of 30-90 days, which is consistent with market practice. Any obligation to provide a refund is
recognized as a provision. Receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered to customer or its carrier as this is the point in time
that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due. Sales arc presented

net ofdiscounts, rebates and GST collected.

Service Contracts
Revenue from sale ofservices is recognised on monthly basis based on the portion ofservices provided during the month. Revenue
from sale ofscrvices is measured as per the terms ofthe contract, net ofcredit notes or othcr dcductions.

Variable Consideration

The nature ofthe Company's contracts gives rise to several types ofvariable consideration, including claims, unpriccd change orders,

award and incentive fees, changc in law, liquidatcd damages and penalties. The company recognizes revcnuc for variable

consideration when it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The

company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using the expected value (i.e., the sum of a

probability-weighted amount) or the most likely amount method, whichever is expected to better predict the amount. The Company's

claim for extra work, incentives and escalation in rates relating to execution of contracts are recognized as revenue in the year in

which said claims are finally accepted by the clients. Claims under arbitration/disputes are accounted as income based on final

award. Expenses on arbitration are accounted as incurred.

Claims - are recognised on its approval from client/ authority/courts decision or its surety ofreceipt (not on assessmentJ

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers whether the amount of

variable consideration is constraincd. The Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained

based on its historical experiencc, business forecast and the current economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable

consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.
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B) Contract Balances

ConhactAssets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs

by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is

recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional, Contract assets represent revenue recognized in excess of amounts billed

and include unbilled receivables. Unbilled receivables, which represent an unconditional right to payment subiect only to the passage

oftime, are reclassified to accounts receivable when they are billed under the terms ofthe contract.

Trade Receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is

required before payment ofthe consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies offinancial assets in point 2.13 ofAccounting

Policies - Financial Instruments.

Contract Liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or

an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company Eansfers goods or

seryices to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).

Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company

performs under the contract. Contract liabiliries include unearned revenue which represent amounts billed to clients in excess of

revenue recognized to date and advances received from customers. For contracts where progress billing exceeds, the aggregate of

contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profis (or minus recognised losses, as the case may beJ, the surplus is shown as

contract liability and termed as unearned revenue. Amounts received before the related work is performed are disclosed in the

balance sheet as contract liability and termed as advances received from customers.

Interest Income
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate [EIR). EIR is the

rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a

shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount ofthe financial asset or to the amortised cost ofa financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the management estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual

terms ofthe financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected

credit losses. lnterest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss,

Dividend Income

Revenue is recognized when the company's right to receive the payment is establishe4 which is generally when shareholders
approve the dividend.

Insurance claims
Insurance claims are accounted to the extent that there is no uncertainry in receiving the claims.

2,71 Provisions and contingencies
A provision is recognized i[, as a result ofa past event, the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) that is reasonably
estimable, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are not
recognized for future operating losses.

Where the effect of time value of money is significant provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a

pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in
the provision due to passage oftime is recognized as interest expense.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of
- a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation.
- present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible
- a possible obligation arising from past events where the probability of outflow of resources is not remote.

Contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is

Ii.,(A1

probable,
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date
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2.12 Government Grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions

will be complied with. when ihe grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the pcriods

that the related costs, for which ii is intended to compcnsate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as

income in equal amounts over the expected useful life ofthe related asset. When loans or similar assistance are provided by

governments or related institutions with an interest rate below the current applicablc market ratc, the effect ofthis favourablc

interest is regarded as a government grant'

2.73 Financiallnstruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument of another entity'
(a) Initlal Recognition & Measurement

The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are

initially measured at transaction price. Transactions costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue offinancial assets

and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Statcment of Profit and Loss (FVTPL))

are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilties, as appropriate, on intial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

are recognised immediately in statement of Profit and Loss. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at

trade date i.e., the datc at which the company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

(b) Classilication of Financial Assets

0n initial recognition, a financial assct is classified to bc measured at amortiscd cost, fair value through other comprehensivc incomc

(FVT0CI) or FVTPL.

Financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:
. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding'

Such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective intcrest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by

taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR' The EIR

amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or

loss.
Financial asset is measured at fair value through OCI :

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions

are met:
. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contracrual cash flows and se

financial assets and
. thc contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that arc solely payments o

interest on the principal amount outstanding,
Such instruments are measured at fair value at initial recognition as well as at each reporting date fair value movements are

recognised in the 0ther Comprehensive Income ('OCI'). Intcrest income, impairment losses and revcrsals and foreign exchange gain

or lois are recogniscd in the statemcnt ofprofit and loss. On de-recognition ofthe asset, cumulative gain or loss previously

recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to statement of profit and loss, lnterest earned on such instrumcnts is reported

as interest income using the EIR method.

Further, the Group may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition, to classiry as FVOCI, particular investments in equity

instruments (except equity instruments held for trading) that would otherwise be measured as FVTPL. The Group makes such

an election on an instrument by-instrument basis. Such instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition as

well as at each reporting date. All fair value changes are recognised in OCL There is no recycling ofamounts from OCI to statement of

profit and loss, even on derecognition, However, the Group may transfer thc cumulative gain/loss within cquity. Dividend received on

these equity investments is recorded in the profit and loss statement.

Financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss:

Afinancialassctwhichisnotclassifiedinanyoftheabovecategoriesissubsequentlyfairvaluedthroughprofitorloss Thecompany

may elect to dcsignate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FWPL, which is thereafter

irrevocable. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency

(referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The company has not designated any debt instrumcnt as at FVTPL.

*
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(c) Derecognition of Financial Assets

Afinancialasset(or,whereapplicable,apartofaGroupofsimilarfinancialassetsJisprimarilyderecognised(ie 
removedfromthe

Group,s Balance Sheet) when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or the Group has transferred its rights to

receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third

party under a ,pass-through' arrangement; and either 1a) ttre Croup has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asser, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor rctrlned substantially all the risks and rewards ofthe asset, but has transferred

control ofthe asset.

[d) Impairment of Financial Assets

The company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for thc financial assets which are not fair valued

through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measurcd at an amount equal

to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL' unless

there has becn a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measurcd at lifetime ECL'

As a practical expedient, the company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade

receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life ofthe trade receivables and

is adiusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in

the forward-looking estimates are analyzed,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of

profit a;d loss (profit and Loss). This amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses' in the Profit and Loss'

ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet' The allowance

reduces the net carrying amount. until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company docs not reduce impairmcnt allowance from

the gross carrying amount.

(e) Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount isreported in the balance sheet if there is a currently

enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and

settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(f) Classilication as Debt or Equity

Debt and cquity instruments issued by a company are classified as either financial liabilitics or as cquity in accordancc with thc

substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument'

Equity Instruments

An cquity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities'

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration recognized

in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payablcs

maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity ofthese

instruments. The company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings.

Loans and Borrowings- After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measurcd at amortised cost

using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

EIR amortisation process, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or

costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This

category generally applies to borrowings.

(g) Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability (or a part ofa financial liability) is derecognized from the company's balance sheet when the obligation specified

in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is rcplaced by another from the same lender

on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is

treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respectivc carrying

amounts is recognized in the statement ofprofit or loss'



Utkarsh India Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(h) Reclassification of Financial Instruments

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no

reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabitities. For financial assets which are debt

instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the

business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business model as a

result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such changes are evident to external parties'

A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its

operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectivcly from the rcclassification date

which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate

any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Original Classifi cation Revised Classification Accounting Treatment

Amortiscd Cost FVTPL

Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between

previous amortized cost and fair value is recognised in Statement ol

Profit and Loss.

FVTPL Amortised Cost
Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amou

EIR is cal on the new nt.

Amortised Cost

Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference bewveen

previous amortised cost and fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in

EIR due fication.

FVTOCI Amortised Cost

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cos

carrying amount. However, cumulative gain or
loss in OCI is adlusted against fair value. Consequently, the asset is

measured as if it had measured at Amortised

FVTPL FVTOCI
Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No

othcr adiustment is rcquired.

FVTOCI FVTPL

Assets continue to be mcasured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss

previously recognized in OCI is reclassified to Statement of Profit and

Loss at the reclassification datc.

FVTOCI
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Z.l4 Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place

either.

' In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
. In the absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the assct or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company'

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using thc assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset

or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation tcchniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to

measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are categorised within

the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:
. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or

indirectly observable
. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the managcmcnt determines

whcther transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as investments

fother than investment in subsidiaries) measured at fair value.
At each reporting date, the management analyses the movemcnts in the values ofassets and liabilities which arc required to be re-

measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies, For this analysis, the management verifies the maior inputs

applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

2.lS Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term dcposits with an original maturity
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subiect to

an insignificant risk of changes in value.



Utkarsh India Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
2.16 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial

period of time to get re;dy for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing

iosts are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing cost includes exchange differences arising from foreign currency

borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as adiustment to the interest cost'

2.17 Foreign Currencies
Thc functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic environmcnt in which it operates Thc

functional currency ofthe Company is lndian National Rupee (lNR).

The transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates ofexchangc

prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting year, monetary items denominated in foreign currencics are

retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies

are retranslated at the .rt", p.ariiling at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in

terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

2.7A Employee Benefits

(a) Short term Obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expectcd to be settled wholly within 12 months after thc

end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recogniscd in respect of employee's services up to the end of

the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are seffled. Thc liabilities are

presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

@) Post Employment Obligations

Defi ned Benefit Obligations
. The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefits

obligation at the end ofthe reporting period less the fair value ofplan assets, The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by

actuaries using the Proiected Unit Credit Method at the year end.
. The present value of thc defined benefit obtigation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by referencc to

market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related

obligations.
.The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance ofthe defined benefit obligation and the fair value

of plan assets. This cost is included in Employees Benefits Expense in the statement of profit and loss.

.Rc-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adiustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in thc

period in which they occur, directly in Other Comprehensive lncome. They are included in retained earnings in the statcment of

changes in equity.
. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amcndments or curtailments are rccognized

immediately in the profit or loss as past service cost.

Defi ned Contribution Plans
The Company makes contribution towards Provident Fund and Employees Statc lnsurance Scheme under a defined contribution

retirement benefit plan for qualirying employees. Under the said scheme the Company is required to contribute a specific percentage

of pay roll costs in rcspect of eligible empl oyees. The contribution is recognized during the period in which thc employ bc renders

service.

(c) Other Long Term Employee Benelit Obligations

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the

employees render the related service. They are therefore measurcd annually by actuarics as the present value of expected future

payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the proiected unit

credit method. Remeasurements as a result of experience adiustmcnts and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in thc

statement ofprofit and loss through other comprehensive income/loss.



Utkarsh India Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
2-19 Taxation

lncome tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and dcferred tax'

Current Tax:
Currcnt tax comprises thc expected tax payable or receivable on thc taxable income or loss for thc ycar and any adiustmcnt to thc tax

payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to

be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax lawsJ

enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only ifthere is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts, and

it is intended to rcalize the asset and scttle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts ofassets and Iiabilities in the financial statements

and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Dcferred tax liabilities are gcnerally recogniscd for all

taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for atl deductible temporary differences to the extent that

it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred

tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business

combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,

deferred tax liabilities are not recognised ifthe temporary difference arises from the initial recognition ofgoodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is rcviewed at the end of each rcporting pcriod and reduced to thc extent that it is no

longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled

or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against

current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

2,20 Earningspershare:
Basic carnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weightcd average numbcr of equity sharcs

outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings pcr sharc to take into account thc after

income tax effect ofinterest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity sharcs and the weighted average

number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares

2.21

2.22

Investment in subsidiaries, associates and ioint ventures
Investmcnt in subsidiaries, associates and joint venturcs are shown at cost. Whcre the carrying amount of an investment in greatcr

than its estimatcd recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the differencc is transferred to

the Statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference betlveen the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount is chargcd or crcdited to the Statcment of Profit and Loss. The Invcstmcnt in unquotcd shares other than in Subsidiary has

been mcasured at cost other than Fair Valuc as thc impact of recording thc same at Fair Value on thc financial performancc would be

immaterial.

Corporate Social Responsibility
As per Section 135 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, a Company, meeting the applicability threshold, nccds to spcnd at least 2o/o of its

average net profit for the immediate preceding three financial years on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas [or

CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and

rehabilitation, environment sustainability e.t.c. The company contributed the CSR amount to a Registered TRUST operating for the

above mentioned activities.

2.23 Recent Accounting Pronouncements:
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA'I notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (lndian

Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31st March ,2024,MCA has not notified any new

standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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Utkarsh India Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at 31st March,2024

tin
Note 8 : Other Financial Assets

Particulars
As at

31st March,2024
As at

31st March,2023
As at

1stADrll.2022

Security Deposits

Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity(given as margin money for LC and BG)

Total

294.87
1 1 5.15

236.53
s5.77

773.09
55.71

+LO.O2 292.24 224.40

tin
Note 9 : Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities (Net)

As at
3lst March,2024

As at
31st March,2023

As at
LstAprll,2022Particulars

68.14

0.35
0.97

7,679.17
5.07

59.80

1.80

0.75
L,492.56

3.66
1,151.37

0.81

4.88

44.40
1,439.43

1,558.57 2,640.49t,753.64

3.60
12.53
12.03
13.91

0.05
73.53
38.00

87.3L

10.00

51.98

76.35
43.75

13.85
6.03
8.S2

t49.29L4A.S2 153.65

Deferred tax liability arising on account of:
Fair valuation of mutual Fund recognised in profit or loss

Fair valuation of Bullion recognised in profit or loss

Actuarial Gain through other comprehensive income

On account of depreciation
Finance Income on Security Deposits against Lease

Freehold Land Fair Valuation measured through Other Comprehenive Income

Reversal of Contractual Rent Payment taken as expense in IGAAP

Gross deferred tax liabilities (A)
Deferred tax asset arislng on account of:
Fair valuation of Mutual Fund recognised in profit or loss
Finance Expense on Lease Liability
Depreciation on ROU Asset recognized on Lease Treatment
Past Service Cost

Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Depreciation on Prepaid Lease Rent/ R0U Asset of Security Deposit
Expected Credit Loss

Actuarial loss through other comprehensive income
Gross deferred tax assets (C)

r,60s.tz 1,404.92 2,49t.59Deferred tax liabilities/ (assets) (net) (A+B+Cl

NOTE 9 : DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES {ln

Deferred Tax Balance in Relation to As at
1st Aprll, 2023

Recognised/
Reversed

throush PL

Recognised/
Reclassifled
throush OCI

As at
31st March,2024

Fair valuation of mutual Fund recognised in profit or loss

Fair valuation of Bullion recognised in profit or loss

Actuarial Gain through other comprehensive income
On account of depreciation
Finance Income on Security Deposits against Lease

Freehold Land Fair Valuation measured through Other Comprehenive Income

Reversal of ConEactual Rent Payment taken as expense in IGAAP

Fair valuation ofMutual Fund recognised in profit or loss
Finance Expense on Lease Liability
Depreciation on ROU Asset recognized on Lease Treatment
Past Service Cost

Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Depreciation on Prepaid Lease Rent/ ROU Asset of Security Deposit

Expected Credit Loss

Actuarial loss throuqh other comprehensive income

3.50
12.53
12.03
13.91

(1.80)
(0.7s)

(1,492.s6)
(3.66)

(se.80J

0.05
73.53
38.00

(3.601

(12.s3)
1.83

(7.88)

(0.3s)
0.83

(185.ssJ
(1.41)

2.82
,:,

(8.341

(0.0s)

0,75

8.52

13.86
6.03

8.52

(0.3s)
(0.e7)

(r,679.17)
(s.07)

(68.14)

76.35
43.76

Total 1,404.92 (209.481 9.27 (1,605.12)

Deferred Tax Balance in Relation to
As at

1stAprtl,2022

Recognised/
Reversed

throush PL

Recognised/
Reclasslned
throush OCI

As at
31st March,2023

Fair valuation ofmutual Fund recognised in profit or loss

Fair valuation of Bullion recognised in profit or loss

Actuarial Gain through other comprehensive income
On account of depreciation
Finance lncome on Security Deposits against Lease

Freehold Land Fair Valuation measured through Other Comprehenive lncome
Reversal of Contractual Rent Payment taken as expense in IGAAP

Fair valuation of Mutual Fund recognised in profit or loss

Finance Expense on Lease Liability
Depreciation on ROU Asset recognized on Lease Treatment
Past Service Cost

Interest Cost

Current Service Cost

Depreciation on Prepaid Lease Rent/ ROU Asset of Security Deposit
Expected Credit Loss

Actuarial loss through other comprehensive income

(0.81)
(4.88)

(44.40)
(1,439.43)

( 1,1s 1.37)

87.37

10.00

sr.se

0.81
3.08

(s3.13)
(3.66)

(se.80)
0.05

73.53
38.00

(87.31)
3.50
2.53

L2.03
(38.07)

43.66

1,1 5 1.3 7

(1.80)
(0.7s)

(1,4e2.s6)
(3.55)

(se.80)
0.05

73.53
38.00

3.60
12.53
12.03
13.91

Total {2,491.591 t108.32.l t,t9s.o2 (r,+04.92)



Utkarsh India Limited

Notes to the Flnanclal Statements as at 31st March, 2024
( t in Lakhs)

Note 10 : Other Non Current Assets

Particulars
As at

31st March,2024
As at

31st March,2023
As at

1st Aoril, 2022

Capital Advances
-Security Deposits

450.49
77.79

138.77
23.75

t4L.57
?3.75

Total 462.27 162.52 L65.26

tln
Note 11: Inventorles

As at
31st March,2024

As at
31st March,2023

As at
1stADril,2022Particulars

14,820.79
8,643.41

L3,L3Z.9t

L,348.73

12,561.72
7,765.95

15,141.45

7,044.42

12,555.39
7,478.46

t6,468.70
938.88

35,9t7,5437,54t.43 37,945.44

Valued at Lower ofCost or Net Realisable Value:
Raw Materials
Work in progress
Finished Goods

Consumable, stores & spares parts



Utkarsh lndia Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2O24

Note 12 : Trade Receivables fcurrent) ( t in Lakhsl

Particulars
As at

31st March 2024
As at

31st March, 2023
As at

lst Aptil,zo2z
Unsecured - Considered Good

Credit lmpaired
Less: Allowance for doubtful debt/ Expected credit loss

24,657.97

(28s.78)

23,2A1.26

(261.80)

la,762.47

(206.s2)

Total 24,366.t9 23,OLg,46 17,955.95

As at 31st March 2024
due date

6 months -1 year 1-Z years 2-3 years
More than 3

years TotalParticulars
Not Due

Less than 6
months

23,352.28

t233.s2)

27.t8

1,135.93

(34.71

57.65

(4.04

77.23

t1r..58)

7.70

( 1.93)

24,488.27

L63.77

(28s.78)

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered
good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have

significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit

impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have

significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Less: Allowance for credit losses
65.65 s.7a 2+,366,L9Total 23,118.76 1,122.40 53.61

as at 31st 2023

Ageing as at 1st AptlLZoZZ

Particulars
outstanding for following perlods from due date ofpaymentf

Not Due
Less than 6

months
6 months -1 year 1-2 years Z-3 years

More than 3
years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered
good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have

significant increase in credit risk

[iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit
impaired

[iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good

[v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk

[vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Less: Allowance for credit losses

22,032.40

(220.32)

1,163.93

(34.92)

77.23

(5.41

7.70

(1.16)

23,796.33

84.93

t261.80 )

Total zt.at2.o7 t.t29.ol 71.43 6.55 23,Otg.46

Particulars
Not Due

Less than 6
months

6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3

years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered
good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have

significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit

impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have

significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Less: Allowance for credit losses

16,992.74

/]-69.94]'

1,,732.70

(33.96',)

37.62

(2.63\

t4,124.44

37.62

(206.s31

Total 16,422.41 1.098.13 34-99 L7,955.93



Utkarsh lndia Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at 3lst March, 2O24

t in Lakhr

Note 14 : Bank Balance[Other Than cash and Cash equivalents

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

As at
1st April, 2022

Balances with Bank :

In MarEln monev witl maturitv more than 3 months but less than 12 months r.793.6+ 1,871,85 1,533.73

Total t,793,64 1,871.85 1,533.73

Note 15: other Financial Assets (Current)

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2024

As at

31st March, 2023

As at

Lst AprlLzozz

StaffAdvance
Balancewith GovL Authority
Securiw DeDosits

110.48
8.27

84.13

a3.97
10.37

402.09

54.34
2.t7

447.64

Total 20z.aa 496.43 504.15

Particulars
As at

31st March, z024
As at

31st March, 2023

As at
1st ADril, 2022

GST Receivable(Net)
Advance to suppliers
PreDaid ExDenses

870.80
+09.22

7,451.76
367.63
243.32

593.53
792.96
t6z.z0

L,zAO.OZ 2,062.11 944.69

Note 13 : Cash and Cash Equivalents
As at

31st March, 2023

As at
1st April, 2022

As at

3lst March, 2024Particulars

86.29
562.83
tz.o9

65.09
375.32

2.60

42.47
250.23
fi.44

Balances with Banks :

(i) Current Account
(ii) In Deposit Accounts

Cash on Hand
350.54 661.21 443.O\otal



6

So I'E9G+
too

!

\a

so\
N

o
6

6

s
@q
O

sss
d?eq
m\od

N
N
N

g

6

o

o

z

hb
NNO Y
@do :
+@-a 

--slD )
o
D

N
o

6

$i 3'
E9

i5d

,!

3,oo

OEs"

s
@q

sss
moo
ciG'j so\o

N

m
N
N

L

=
m
o

o
6

j

2

hDNNO Y6Ho Y
+@-a *'
6NN

h

r

$.8
E HEeE >
rolo-!

s
o\
N

N

jJo
oo

-oo

s
@q
o

sss
hdhd?o?q
mQi

q

z

NNO :i@do X
+@-1 --gls ) u

F.
m

o

a
o

o
o

Gz

o
d

h*
?-9*

e42e2
Ed^EEE
6 Z cE L
.E E g.E E43649,

G

F

€o
6to
*9EgE;
qo cooQ
E.! E
-= oit 3

=81t 6.!

t x-

5 33

7 o5

18.=
5o!ot o
L!5I >F
J otrocd>:=

ooo

t o'-9cB-gat
EE.E
q=O

h= g
! o_o
>tr E
-:od

q< A
,F46= ?.
I uL
otrc

!5.:
-ou

.6=
LOC
6 c.r

Eaq

dC troc(
r{=
& so'jj
a6*
Eoo
E-3 i
Qho

h€.EqE:

=L 
L O

6 h! 9
E o L+-oE o tsO-86

a!:6<i#; b 3,
.E>: IE
6j:Y=)-i+ * E U
:o 6 u o

is.EE:
9o I a q
G. I6 Qtal eph
6: 6 c 6
:H :.8 >
urxE='lxx o =

EHE f P
F: a o;l
6(:!.2.EFo E 9? E

!F CA E tr

o

o
o

q

o
G

o
o

G

o
&

o
fr

oE

o
6

so
6E
o
o

o

oL

G
o

o
o

a-

o

z

+
N
N

6

m
r!

6

o

o
6

E-oG

6r
!o

GO

)z

N
N
N

E

saq
a
N

u
!

s

sssssssN6NN+hiiooh+Nm
.idtoooic,<j

G

o
G

j

z

oDoooo6oNooooNq o- o- o- o- o-.1
o+NHob@N@@OOTNN-d1\\u1t.1
oNHiiia

oo
+.

D\

m
N
N

L
6

u

s

sssssssNhNN+OHdoon+Nm
.idioodqtG
Nd

s€
d
N

ohooaoD
oNooooN
!{@-o-o-o-a-t1
o+Nioh@
N@@OONNN-q\\qq.1
oNHiiid

o

n\
m

6

o
G

z

N
N

L
6

b!

o

s

sssssss
NbNNSbi
naq14qojrldmoo@@€
Ni

sao
6
N

o
L

ciz

ohaooohoNooooN+oooooH
di + ..i .i oi ut oo^N6@OOtsN
\d1\\u1+-.1
oNiiaid

oo
a,
u\

o!

o
6

o
o

6z
o
6

o

U

=E
>5
=o o
iG
E.2 ! H d
6L --r'=o,- tr o tr
O-9 - 6l

- > .,
of .9'iiod2 eligEE F Ei E_Br ;E Er IhET?* 8.8 EE>: a o= ooo-Aaoilil-
>,?E'. ua=G.tsh=6P.U:=
3J=BE€EJErSoOL5o=tr

N
@
N

N6\
N
No
N

r

6
o
6

z

ooo
o
N
N

o
m

N
6
ts

V

o

N
@\

N
co
F.
.i

m
N
N

L
G
E

m
G

o
6

z

a
h
d
N

N

h

r
F

V N
@
N.

N
c0\

No
N

G
z

o
6

h

N

r

ao
u1
o
N
@"
N

oo
N
cor

6

oo
o

o
U

Uo!
o

6
o
6E

o
q1

do
o

q

o

o

-it

L6o

a

o
o

6
o
6

5o

G

&

oo
N

o
o
N

N
@\

ts

\

q
L
6

o!

2

a
oo
N

oo

o
N

N
@
N

b

N
co
N

o
N
N

G

o
6

Oo
6i N

N
@
N.

N
co\

o
oP
=6
a0z

oo
a
o
N

o
N

oa
u1
aN
@-
r

h

r
co
N

No
N

6

o
G

o
N

oo
o.
N

N
@
N

F.

F.

oP

=qz

o
O
o-
o
O
O.
a
N

o
N

oo
v1
Oro
t-'

h

N

r

L
6

I

A

'6
A
5

qE
-LE'Eu
9lO
E'1
;d

ov

6E
,o6
=>02

:a

No
O
6
d

a
o
6

6-
q=
ud
ooqo
Le-

ts.i

N
N
N



Utkarsh India Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at 31st MarchZ0?4

(tin
Note 18 : Other Equity

As at

31st March 2024

As at

31-Mar-23

As at

Ol-Apr-22
Particulars

2,736.29

570.00

4,706.29 3,306.29

800.00

4,106.29 3,306.294,106.29

614.21 674.2L 674.27

614.21 6t4.Zt614.21

5,052.30 5,052.30 5,052.30

5,052.305,052.30 5,052.30

4,574.73 4,574.73

4,574.73

4,574.73 4,574.73 4,574.73

1.6,030.28
(2s.33)

5,218.13

12,001.50
Z.2Z

4,826.55

t800.001

77,734.68
776.43

1,260.39

t570.001
21,223.O7 16,030.28 12,001.50

(2s-33)

25.33

2.22

(2.22)

4,574.73
176.43

(4,574.73)
(776.43)

35,570.60 30,377.80 25,549.O3

(a) General Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the period

Changes during the year

Balance as at the end ofthe period

(b) Capital Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the period

Changes during the year

Balance as at the end ofthe period

(c) Securities Premium Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the period

Changes during the year

Balance as at the end ofthe period

(d) Revaluation Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the period

Changes during the year
Transferred from OCI

Balance as at the end ofthe period
(c) Retained Earning

Balance as atthe beginning ofthe period
Add: Transferred from OCI

Add: Profit after Tax for the year
Less: Appropriations

Transfer to General Reserve
Balance as at the end ofthe period

(d) Other Comprehensive Income
Balance as at the beginning of the period
Changes during the year

Fair Value Adjustments of Freehold Land measured throug
Actuarial Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Transferred to Revaluation Reserve

Less: Reclassification to Profit/Loss
Balance as at the end ofthe period



(i) General reserve
Under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net profit at
a specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. Consequent to the introduction of the Companies

Act,201,3,the requirement to mandatory transfer a specified percentage of net profit to general reserve has been

withdrawn.

(ii) Securities Premium Reserve
The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in securities premium.

(iii) Capital Reserve
Under the erstwhile Companies Act,1956 a Capital reserve was created through the transfer of amount while
amalgamation to a previous company

(iv) Retained Earning
Retained Earnings are created from the profit/loss of the Company, as adjusted for distributions to
owners/shareholder, transfer to other reserves, etc. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company,

[v) Other Comprehensive Income
The Company has elected to recognise changes in revaluation surplus through other comprehensive income.



Utkarsh Indla Limited
Notes to th€ Flnancial Statements as at 31st March, 2024

lin
Note 19 : BorrowiDBs (Non-Current)

Pardculars
As at

31st March,2024

As at

31st March, 2023

As at

lst Aprll,202?,

seflred
Tem loatrs

Rupee loan from banl6 (secured)

Rupee loan hom e body corporate (seored)

Working Gpihl term loan from banks (seored)

Hlre Puch6e Fhance
From banks (secured)

Froh a body corporate (seilred)

Unsecured

Loan from Related Party

Others

Less: Current Maturities ofLong term borrowings

4,A27.07

474.62

2,907.52

102.15

25A.77

4,505.65

(3,602.15)

3,232.51

L,472.36

3,674.24

87.95

237.24

4,968.69

(2,300.17)

3,331.33

1,833.35

4,309.38

99.69

96.53

4,A35.52

(2,700.35)

9,97 4.63 77,372.46 1 1,806.4

Natue ofsecurity aod terms of repaymetrt for secured borrowiogs
1) Vehicle Loan
Commercial

vehicle Loao Securitles
Loan Amount

Sanctloned
Terms ofRcpaymeot

lndian Bank (WB-OZAU-9231)

Hypothecation of vehicle purchased

out of bank
9.00

60 equal monthly installmnts of
Rs 18,465 starting from 7th

February 2024.

lndian Bank (W8-02AU-9228)

llypothecation of v6hicl6 purchasad

out of bank
9,00

60.qu.l monthly lnstallm.nts of
Rs 18,522 starting frcm 7th

Fcbru.ry 2024.

Bank of Baroda (WB-02AU-2315)

Hypotheation of vahicl. purcha*d
out of bank

8.95

51 cqual monthly inst llm€nts of
R5 18,459 st rtintfrcm loth
August 2023.

Bank of Baroda (wB-02AU-2319)

Hypoth*ation of v6hiclG purchas.d

out of bank
8.96

60 €qual monthly installmsnts of
Rs 18,459 rtartins fom l0th
S.ptcmbrr 2023.

8MW Financial Services (WB-02AU-4224)

Hypothec.tion of vehicle purch.sed

out of bank
129.98

36 6qurl monthly installmcnti of
Rs 246,044 startint frcm 1st

octobcr 2023.

ICICI BANK LTD.. WB-O2AR-3303

Hvpothecatioh of vehicle purchas.d

out of bank 32.79

36 equal monthly irstallmcntr of
Rr 102,327 startint from sth

tctct BANK LTD. - WB-02AR-8634

Hypothecation of vehicle pu.chased

out of bank
9.83

36 equal monthly installments of
Rs 30,779 st.rtin! from 1fth
0ecember 2021.

tctct BANK LTD. - WB-02AS-1881

Hypothecation of vehicle purchared

out of bank
25.90

35 equal monthly lnstallments of
R5 E0,574 startint from sth
Febru.ry 2022.

ICICI BANK LTD. - W8.15D.9909

Hypothccation of vehlclr purchased

out of bank 17.25

35 rqual monthly lnstallments of
Rs 54,840 stanint from 1st March

lctct BANK LTD. - WB-11F-3080

Hypothstion of vehicle purchased

out of bank 8.00

35 equal monthh installments of
Rr 25,718 startlnl frcm 7th M.y

tctct BANK LTD. - WB-02AS-7356

Hypothsation otvehiclc purchasd

out of bank
7.LS

39 equal monthly installments of
Rs 20,937 starting fom lst

BO8-WB-02AS-9012

llypoth.catlon of vchlcle purchased

out of b.nk

60 cqual monthly instlllmcnts of
Rs 1&654 st rtint from lfth
September 2022.

BO8-WB-02AS-9021

Hypothc€tion of vrhicle purchasrd

out of bank
9.22

50 equal monthly lnstallmcnti of
Rs 18,818 starting from 10th

September 2022.

Hypothecation of vehlcle purchascd

out of b.nk
9.t4

60 rqual monthly lnstallmcnls of
R5 18,654 sbrtint from 10th

Septefrber 2022.

BANK LTD-WB-191-6957

Hypothecatlon of vehlclr purchasad

out of bank
25.00

59 equal monthly inrtallmlnts of
Rs 52,789 sta.tint from 1sth

October 2023.

Hypothecation of vchicle purchascd

out of bank
169.00

35 equal monthly installments of
Rs 300,612 sh.tint from 18th

September 2022.

BOB,WB-02AS-9126

MFRa-WB-O7AS-S66q



Utkamh India Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at 31st March 2024

2) Term

Terms OfRepaym€ntTerm Loan Securitles
Loan Amount

Sanctioned (t)
18 equal Quaterly lnstallment of

Rs 1.67 crore starting from June

Quarter 2024-25.

Punjab National Bank

First Charge on fixed assets of the
manufacturing unit situated at Jalan

lndustrial complex, vlllage- Jangalpur

& in the unit situated at NH-2

DurSapur Express Way on pari-paru

basis with other term lenders.

Second charge on stock, book debts

and other current assets of three
company on pari-paru basis with other
term lenders.

Personal Guarantee given by Mr. Sunil
3,000.00

lclcl Bank Ltd

charSe established on commercial
properties: Units 2 and 3 on the 2nd

floor, and Units 1 to 5 on the 4th floor
of 95A Elliot Road, Arihant/Arrjaw
Square, P.S. Park Street, Ward No.61,
K6lkrtr-7OO Ol 480.00

180 equal monthly installments

of Rs 483,997 starting from loth
ianuary 2024.

lndian Bank - 50513205710

secured by pari passu first charge on

fixed assets of the Company situated

at Jalan lndustrial complex, village -

Jangalpur, P.S. - Andul Mouri, Dist -

HowEh, W.8. & at N.H.-2, Dur8apur

Express Way, P.O./P.S. Gurap, Dist -

Hooghly, w.B. (excluding assets

acqurred on H.P basis) and by pari

passu second charge on stocks, book

debts & other current assets of the
company.

2,000.00

3 equal quarterly installments of
Rs 1,25,00,000 startin8 from 30th

March 2021.

lndian Bank- 7276004396

Secured by pari passu first charge on

fixed assets ofthe Company situated

at Jalan lndustrial complex, Vlllage -

.Jangalpur, P.S. - Andul Mouri, Dist -

HowEh, W.B. & at N.H.-2, Durgapur

Express Way, P.O./P.S. GuEp, Oist -

Hooghly, w.B. (excluding assets

acquired on H.P basis) and by pari

passu second char8c on stocks, book

debts & other current assets of the
company.

1,200.00

18 equal quartarly installments of
Rs 54,54,546 starting f.om 29th

Apnl 2023.

lClCl Bank ttd.- LBCAL292s022

Charge established on commercial
properties:Arrjaw Square, 95A,
Kolk.t. 7OOO16 641.00

27 equal monthly installments of
Rs 8,35,341 starting from loth
Aurust 2O16

lClCl Bank Ltd.- 1BCA100004647951

Charge established on commercial
propertlcs:Arr.iaw Squarc, 95A,

Kolkata 700015 240.00

20 equal monthly iostallments of
Rs 3,86,756 startlng from 10th

ScDtcmbcr 2018.

lClCl Bank Ltd.- 1BCA100004949687

chargc cstabllshed on commcrcial
prop€rtics:Arrjaw Square, 95A,

Kolkata 700016 1 15.00

59 rqual monthly lnstallmcnts of
Rs 1,51,655 starting from loth
MaY 2019.

lClCl Bank Ltd.- 1BCA10005055752

charge established on commercial
propenies:Arrjaw Square, 95A,

Kolkata 700015 200.00

60.qual monthly installments of
Rs 2,68,194 starting from 10th

Aurust 2019.

lClCl Eank Ltd.- 18CAt00005905193

Cha.ge established on commercial
properties:Arrjaw Square, 95A,

Kolkata 700015 340.00

190 equal monthly installments

of Rs 3,15,185 starting frcm sth
Februarv 2022.

lClCl Bank Ltd.- LBCA100005905195

Charge established on commercial

properties:Arrjaw Square, 95A,

Kolkata 700015 210.00

190 equal monthly installments

of Rs 1,94,573 starting from 5th

Februarv 2022.

'ATA CAPITAL - 21802932

Secured by pari passu first charge on

fixed assets of the Company situated

at lalan lndustrial Complex, Vlllage -

Jangalpur, P.S. - Andul Mouri, Dist -

HowEh, W.B. & at N.H.-2, Durgapur

Exprcss Way, P.O./P.S. Gump, Dist -

Hooghly, w.B. (excluding assets

acquired on H.P basis) and by pari

passu second charBe on stocks, book

debts & other current assets of the
company.

2,000.00

4 equal quarterly installments of
Rs 1,1444,062 starting from 1st

January 1900.



Utkarsh India Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at 3 1st March 2024

secured by pari passu first charge on

fixed assets of the company situated

at ialan lndustrial Complex, Village -

Jangalpur, P.S. - Andul Mouri, Dist -

HowEh, w.B. & at N.H.-2, Du.gapur

Express Way, P.o./P.s. GuEp, Di5t -

Hooghly, w,B. {excluding assets

acquired on H.P basis) and by pari

passu 5ec0nd charye on 5tocks, book

debts & other current assets of the
company.

TATA CAPITAL - 21846164 1,000.00

13 equal quarterly installments of
Rs 35,00,000 starting from 1st

January 1900.

lThe banks will hold a second charSe

I position, subordinate to the exlstlng

lcredit facilities, in terms of both the

I underlving security and the cash flows
ldasicnatarl for ranavmantSBI . GECL II 374.00

24 equal monthly installments

startlng from 28th March2022.

lThe banks will hold a second charge

I position, subordinate to the existing

lcredit facilitres. in terms of both the

I underlying security and the cash flows

I da<lqnatcri for rcnavmpntUCO Bank - GECL ll 484.00

24 equal monthly installments of
Rs 11,88,413 startlng from 24th

March 2022.

lThe banks will hold a second charge

lposltion, subordlnate to the exlstlng

lcredit facilities, in terms of both the

lunderlying security and the cash flows
lrie<ignetarl for rpo:vmpnttDBr- GECt I 128.00

24 equal monthly installments of
Rs 2,66,666 starting from 30th

Match 2022.

lThe banks will hold a second charge

lposition, subordinate to the existing

lcredit facilities, in terms of both the

lunderlying security and the cash flows
laa<ionataa rnr renavmantUnion Bank - GECL ll 239.00

24 equal monthly installments

starting from 11th March 2022.

lThe banks will hold a second charge

lposition, subordinate to the existlng

lcredit facilities, in terms of both the

lunderlying securrty and the cash flows

ldesignated for reoavment.Union Bank - GECL ll (Extension) 120.00

48 equal monthly installments

starting from 31st May 2024.

lThe banks will hold a second charge

lposition, subordinate to the existing

lcredit 
facilities, in terms of both the

lunderlying security and the cash flows
lde<ionated for reoavmcntlndian Bank - GECL -ll 7,874.00

26 equal monthly installments

startlng from 10th June 2022.

lThe banks will hold a second char8e

lpositron, subordinate to the exlsting

lcredit facilities, in terms of both the

lunderlying security and the cash flows
lrlecirn:ta.l far ranavmantlndian Bank - GECL -ll (Extension) 1,150.00

47 equal monthly installments

startlng from 31st March2024



Utkarsh India Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements as at 31st March,2O24

Note 20 : Lease Liabilities - Non Current

Note 21 : Other Financial Liabilities - Non Current

Note 22 : Provisions

Refer Note 43 for note on employee benefits obligations.

[i) Nature of security and terms of repayment for Cash Credit Facility
Note 24: Lease Liabilities - Current

tin

t in Lakhs

t in Lakhs

tin

tin

As at
LstAoril.Z0Z2

As at
31st March.2024

As at
31st March,2023Particulars

3,005.32 2,983.903,566.1.9Lease Liability
2,983.903,566.L9 3,005.32Total

As at
lstApril,20Z?

As at
31st March,2024

As at
31st March,2023Particulars

1.00 1.001.00Security Deposits
1.00 1.001.00Total

As at

tstApril,Z02Z
As at

31st March,2024
As at

31stMarch,2023Particulars

227.31 776.09329.87Provision For Gratuity
176.09329.87 227.3LTotal

Note 23 : Borrowings fCurrent)
As at

31st March,2023
As at

lstApril,Z0?ZParticulars
As at

31st March,2024

76,529.07
605.20

3,602.1.5 2,300.17

1,9,249.56 1,4,053.22

608.90

2,700.35
Secured
(a) Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings
(b) From Banks

Working Capital-Cash Credit
- FCNRB

20,736.36 21,549.73 17,362.47

As at

lstApril,20?Z
As at

31st March,2024
As at

31st March,2023
237.60Lease LiabiliW 566.21 270.73

Total 566.21 270.73 237.60

Particulars



Utkarsh India Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March 2024

Particulars
As at

3lst March 2024
As at

31st March,z023
As at

,^stApril,2022

(a) Total outstanding dues ofmicro enterprises and small enterprises

(b) Total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
25,2r0.04 26,921.84 21,626.96

Total 25,270.O4 26,927.44 21,626.96

{ln

Particulars As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March,2023

As at
7st ADrll.zozz

1. Trade Payables - Total outstanding dues ofMicro, Small and Medium Enterprises

a. Principal & Interest amount remaining unpaid but not due as at period end

b. Interest paid by the Company itr terms ofSection 16 ofMicro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act 2006 along with the amount ofthe payment made to the supplier beyond and

appointed day during the period.

c. lnterest due and payable for the period ofdelay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest specified under Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006.

d. lnterest accrued and remaining unpaid as at period end

e. Further interest remaining due and pafable even in the succeeding years until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to small enterprise.

Ageing as at 31st Marchzoz4
lin

Particulars Less than 1 year 7-Z years 2-3 years
More than 3

vears
Total

i. MSME

ii. Others

iii. Disputed dues - MSME
iv. DisDuted dues - Others

25,210.0+ 25,210.04

Total 25,270.O4 25,2L0.04

Agelng as at 31st March, 2023
{in

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
years Total

i. MSME

ii. Others
iii. Disputed dues - MSME
iv. Disouted dues - Others

26,92r.44 26,921.44

Total 26,927.44 26.927.44

Ageing as at 1st April, 2022

Partlculars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
vears

Total

i, MSME

ii. 0thers
iii. Disputed dues - MSME
iv. DisDuted dues - Others

21,626.96 21,627

Total 27,627 21,627



Flnancial

Pafticulars
As at

3lst March, 2oz4

As at

3lst March, 2023

As at

1st Aprll, Zo22

28.27
944.74
292.5A

722.67
866.39
t92.46

91.70
7,378.76

139.43

Total 1,305.53 \taL,92 1,509,89

Pardalars
As at

31st March, 2024

As at

31st March, 2023

As at

1st April, 2022

Provision for income tax (Net ofadvance Til I 635.68 195.53 378.02

Total 635.68 195.53 378.02

Note 28 :

Partiolars
As at

31st March, 2024

As at

31st March, 2023

As at

lstAprll,2022

Advances received from Customers

SEtutory due

1,103.16
r.r48.75

636.96
155.48

1,17s.93
157.29

Total 2,251.91 792.44 1,327.22

Pardfllars
As at

31st March, 2024

As at

31stMarch,2023

As at

lstApril,2022

Provisiotr for Bonus

Provislon for Leave encashment

132.08
s2.79
63-47

104.51
37.24
4e.o2

55.37
29.90
34.70

Total 24a.75 185,81 119.37

: Provisions- ln

Creditors for Capital Goods

Llablllty for expenses



Utkarsh India Limited
Notes tb the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,ZoZ4

Note 30 : Revenue from

Note 31: Other income

Note 32 : Cost of materials consumed

tin

tin

tin

For the year ended
3lst March, 2024

For the year ended
3lst March, 2023Particulars

Operating revenue
Sale ofproducts LA)

Sale of products (net of returns)
Other Products - Scrap

Other operating revenue

Sale ofservices (B)
Sale of Services

2,20,824.24
6,57L.06

34.89

777.3r

L,B7,t35.Ol
5,8Lt.22

56.07

80.93

2,27,607.50 1,93,084.23

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

Particulars

734.64
378,6L

1.81

r5.74
153.69

2.83
20.74
80.51

7.73

110.11
232.02

t.36
165.82
96.40

14.53

L4.37

Interest income on
-Fixed Deposit
-Others

Dividend Received

Miscellaneous receipts
Net Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions
Net Gain arising on Investment measured at fair value through profit or loss

Finance Income on Security Deposit
Profit on Sale of Property Plant & Equipment
Net Gain arising on Bullion measured at fair value through profit or loss

795.70 634.61

Particulars For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
3lst March, 2023

t4,820.79
1,81,631.51

L2,561.72
1,57,885.05

Inventory at the beginning ofthe year
Add: Purchases & procurement expenses

Less: inventory at the end ofthe year

1,96,452.30

12,655.39

1,70,446.77

L4,820.79
Cost of Raw Material Consumed r.83.796.91 1,55,625.98



Utkarsh India Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3lst March, 2024

Note 33 in inventories of finished Stock-in-trade and

Note 34: benefits

Note 35 : Finance costs

Note 36 amortisation and

tin

{in

{in

I in Lakhs

For the year ended
3lst March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023Particulars

13,L32.91

8,643.4r
Ls,141.45
7,L65.95

2,^,776.32 22,307.40

L6,468.70
7,478.46

t3,t32.91
8,643.41

23,947.16 21,776,32

Inventories at the beginning ofthe year:
Finished goods

Work in progress

Inventories at the end of the year:

Finished goods
Work in progress

(2,170,a41 531.08Changes in inventories offinished goods, Stock-in-trade and work'in'progress

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
3lst March, 2023Particulars

477.37

3,66L.54
229.93
136.11

427.67

2,758.43
193.05

58.42

Directors remuneration
Salaries and Wages

Contribution to provident and other fund
Staffwelfare Expenses

3,437.564,498.90

For the year ended
3lst March,2024

For the year ended
3lst March,2023Particulars

799.64
2,490.27

303.34
r,601.73

626.74

594.90
2,304.93

292.15
L,502.91

480.78

Interest on
-Unsecured Loans
-Secured Loans

Finance Expenses (Lease)

L/C Discounting Charges Paid
Other Borrowing Cost

s,17s.665,821.73

Particulars
For the year ended
3lst March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 3)

Depreciation on Right of Use Asset (Refer Note 6)
Amortisation of Intangible Assets (Refer Note 4)

1,584.11
228.95
4t.96

1,576.23
198.81

8.42

1,855.01 1,783,46



Utkarsh India Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3lst March,2O24

Note 37: Other lin
For the year ended
3lst March, 2023

Particulars For the year ended
31st March, 2024

128.05
81.61

t87.63
339.77
195.10
314.09
643.38

2,350.27
329.27
185.25
L75.22
359.64

68.s2
579.09

52.77
774.43
37t.68

11.99
lt.46

t21.57
L.20

sa.t2
19.95
0.38

55.28
L6.29
5.04

266.06

7,109.91
1,691.80

724.97
151.93

3,745.53
273.57
7r.37

571.58

Consumption of stores & spares
Power and Fuel
Carriage Inward
Insurance
Labour Charges
Loading & Unloading Charges

Rates & Taxes

Handling Charges

Repairs to :

(iJ Building
(iiJ Machinery
(iiiJ Others

Security Expenses

Other manufacturing / operating expenses

Advertisement
Brokerage and Commission
Freight & transportation charges
Ocean Freight
Clearing & Forwarding Expense
Consultanry
Legal & Professional Charges

Postage, Telegram & Telephone
Travelling & Conveyance
Sundry Bal. Written Off
Turnover Discount
Sales Promotion
Audit Fees

Audit Fees- Others
Rent and Hire charges
Donation
CSR Expenses

Membership & Subscription
Loss from fair valuation of investments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss

Allowance for Credit Loss

Computer Expenses

Software Expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

2t4.72
201.54
265.06
404.76
374.LL
353.94
t57.25

3,035.88
L85.97
273.45
163.31
533.75
153.80
842.89

48.07
720.04
606.23

L2.00
8.92

321.86

7,239.56
2,176.18
1,148.81

195.45
6,L57.82

3L2.07
4t8.74
29t.35

75.50
14.20

23.98
4.03

76.77
20t.78

22,O43.7627,163.79



lJtkaNh Indla Llmlted
Notes to tlle Flnanclal StatemenB for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Note 38 : Corporate Soclal RespoDslblltty (CSRI

As per Section 13S ofthe Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 296 of its average net profit

for tie immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities, The areas for CSR activities are eradication

of hunger and malnutritioq promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitatio[activities are eradication ofhunger

and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute carc and rehabilitation,environment sustainability, disaster relief,

COVID-19 relief and rural development projects, A CSR committee has been fomed by the company as per the Act. The funds were primarily

utilized through the year on these activities which are specified in Schedule VII ofthe ComPanies Act, 2013:

Detalls of Corporate Soctal RespoDstblllty (CSR) Expendtture:
lln

Note 39 | CoDtbge[t Ltablldes Atrd CouEltments
In t]le ordinary course ofbusiness, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties, The Company assesses such claims and assertions

and monitore the legat environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance ofercemal legal counsel, wherever necessary. The Company records

a liability for oy claims where a potential loss is probable and capable ofbeing estimated and discloses such matteE in its inancial statements, if
material. For potertial losses that are considered possible but not probable, the Company provides dlsclosure in the financial statements but does

not record a liability in its accounts unless the loss becomes probable.

The following is a description ofclaims ard assertioN where a potential loss is possible, but not probable. The Company believes that none ofthe
contingencies described below would have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition, results ofop€rations or cash flow.

Particulars For the yeu euded
31st March,2024

For the yetr eoded
31st March. 2023

For the year ended
3lst March. 2022

(al Bilb discounted bY bankr 8.606.69 2,757.07 1,091.41

(b) Excise outv/E.Ceii/5HE Ceri on conilrnment sale 18 38 889.8S 889.85

deoosil r€ceiots oledsed with bankt 2,159.03 2,490.39 1.964.75

Total 10,784.10 6,137.3L 3.946.01

NOTE 40: DISCLOSURES UNDER IND AS

Partlculars
As at

3lst ltluch, 2024
As at

31st March, Z0Z3
As at

1stAprtl,2022
Statutory Audit Fees

Til Audit Fees

Others

8.00
4.00
4.92

4.50
1.50
5.99

3.00

1.00
0.98

Tohl 20.92 11.99 4.98

Sl.No Partlculars
For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For thc year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March.2022

I
2

3

4

5

6

7

I
9

10

11

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year

Amount of expenditure incurred
a)Construction / acquisition ofanv asset

b)on DurDoses other than fal above
Eradication ofHuuer & Poverty
Promotion ofEducation
Promoting Medi@l Facilites
AnimalWelfare
Development ofArt & Culmre

Amount ofexpenditure incurred for previous year's shortfall

Shoftfall at the end ofthe year

Total ofprevious yeare shortfall
Reason for shortfall

Nature of CSR activities

Amount unspent, ifany;
Excess Amount spent for the Financial Year

Details of related party transactions

Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by

entenng into a conEactual obligatiorL the movemenB in the
provision during the year shall be shom separately

75.30

4.00

54.00

5.00
2.50

N/A

1. EGdi€tion of Hungor
& Poverty
2. Prcmotion of
Eduelion
3. Pmmoting Mediel
Fscilitics
!t. Animal WolfeF
5. Dsvelopmenl olAn &
CulluG

(0.20)

57.91

11.01

21.00

L7.01
6.60
2.50

N/A

1. EEdiqtion of Hungcr
A Povsrty
2. Prcmotion of
Edu€tion
3. PDmoting Medidl
F.cilitics
4. Animal WetfsB
5. Oevelopment ol Arl &
CultuE

f0.21)

s6.34

8.00
29.00
10.00
9.10
2.50

N/A

1. EEdielioo of Hungor
& Poverty
2. Prcmolion of
Edu€tion
3. Prcmoting Msdiql
Fecilitics
4. Animsl Wafare
5. Oevelopment otAfl A
Culturc

0
(2.26)

year
Pafticulars For the year For year



6

o

o
oo

o
d

o
d
N

oc d
@

.!
N

N
N

o
@

o! 6
@

ci
q

I
N

F.!
3 N

N

I
@

d

a
Noo-

N
o

o
F

U

q
@

q
N

o
N

o
N

ez

o

r

@ ni t€ e!
@

-,! q I

@

€
cq

aq
@

\ a

o

a
n q n yi

q
N
N
6

ct
6

o

I

Ia ri n .! Ia
o
u;
N

N
e!

I

n
o
d1

@\
o

oo
o
'c
o

=Eo
.9.
c
iI
o
3
o
.:

a

fo
o
c
E
la

!

E

o

Ej
-qoo
o

o

E

6

a

{,o
o

i;

E

(_,

I
o

oc
0p
d;.E
o
E

!
o

.9

t
E
o
d

3
q
z
o
d,-

F

z
,E
J

I

l

E
o

o
o
I
.E
o

=o

,
I

=

.E

-goo
6
c
o
@

E:
Ec
o

o

o!
E
E
oo
d
.E

oo

E)

I

,
g
o
o
=c
e

l

o
'E

f

-coI
o
c
o

E
E

El
Y

6

o
oa
o
E
Y

6
o
a

c
o
a
o
6
E
.E

I

E

a
E

o
i

lt
o
!o
-g
E

o
o
a

I

E
I

:

i

G

6

e

E

Li

t3

ii:
E6

:!

9-

€!!

oe

o:
A?

9t
Ft

!q

3€
:qo

OF

q

d

z

E
J

E

?

E
I

o;

8T
<E

-c
o*
-oEi

E= E}.
EE ?EEgq s':.8
E.E E I;gd EHEori g:E
=d !1 EU

EEEEEq
6 * r E eg
EH5E6E
=*<, oY
{EEXEaEg6=ae5-roooa)a a-a
JJL:L'

=>>i>=

a)

o;#'85 6
';6 E
5E3
t6

==>

N

N

E

6

c
2

o

t
s
!o

d

N

a

a
L
6a
!

o
1
N

;
I
z

q

d

c

6z

6
:I
u*ge
bee
6=
E!

96

=EY.:vt
Eg
bg3:
EE:'

=€
4!.:o

5.8
!d

b

o

9,

z

=Y

I
E
!!



Utka6h lndla Llmlted
Notestothe FlnrnalalShbmenBfortheperlodand6d 31stMarch 2024

Note 43 : Employee BeneliB

(a) Delired Contribution Plan:

Fund, based on current salaries.

(b) Derined BeDeot Plar (Funded) :

are defined on the basls offinal salary and the period of serylce and pald as lump sum at exit.

produs approved by IRDA and investment guidelines as stipulated under sedion 101 of IT Act, the exact asset mix is unknown and not publicly avallable.
TheTrust assets managed by the fund manager are highly liquid in nature and we do not expect any significant liquidity risks.

required to conduct necessary business e.g. Approval ofTrust's Financial Statements, Revlew Investment performance.

illiquid assets not being sold ln Ume.

plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value ofoblgation wlll have a bearlng on the plan's liabilty.

retirement beneflt ofa short career emDlovee WDlcallv cosB less D€r vear as comDared to a lonc sepice emDloyee.

gratuity payouts (e.8. lncrease in the maxlmum limit on gratuity of120,00,000).

benefit obligation, and the related current sewice cost and past seryice cost, were measured usinS the prolected unit credit method.

cratuity and othcr post cmployment bcnerlt plars

Aoount rsogtrized in the sEtement of prcIitand loss
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Gratuity Gratuity Gratoity

Current serylce cost
lnterest cost

69,64

19.94

50.51

14.31

386.63

(lncome)/ expense reognised in the statement ofprofltand loss 89.59 64.42 386.63

Chatrgcs in delined benelit obliSation

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Gratuity GEtuity Gmmity

Preseht value obli8ation as at the stan ofthe year

Current serylce cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss/ (Bain) on obligatlons

458.13
69.64

33.67

34.08
(z9.z7l

386.63
s0.51

26.33

12.24)
(3.09)

386.63

s66.26 458.13 386.63

BREAX UP OF SERVICE COST As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st M.fth,2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Gratuity GratuityGratuity

69.6+ 50.51
Past Serui@ Cost
Curent Seryice Cost
Curtailment Cost / (Credit) on plan amendmsnts
Settlament Cost / (Crodit) on plan amendments

As at 31st March,2023 As at 31st March, 2022As at 31st March 2024

Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity
Change itr fair value ofplan assets

Plan asseb at beginning ofperlod
Acquisition adiustmeot
lnterest lncome

Return on plan assets, excluding amount rsognlzed in Interest Income - Gain / (Loss
Employer Contributions
Morolity Charges and Taxes
Benefits paid

Actuarial cain / [Loss) on plan asseB

Fair value ofplan assets at the end of
Actual returh on Dlan assets

186.80

(29.271

13.73
0.23
1.02

L76.43

(3.09)

72.01
0.73
0.72 76.431



lin

Amount recognized in OCI
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st Mar.h, 2022

Gratuity Cratuity GratuiW

Opening amount recognised in OCI outslde profit and loss account
Remeasurement for the year -obligation (Galn) / Loss
Remeasurement for the year -plan asset (Gain) / Loss
Total Remeasurements Cost / [Credit I for the year recognised In OCI

(34.0B)
o.23

2.24
o.73

Actuarial (gains)/ loss€s rccognlzed ltr OCI (33.8s) 2.97

Amount recotnized in thc Balancesheet

4S8.13
186.80

74.73
383.40

386.63
176.43

62.73
323.90

value ofthe planassets atthe end ofperlod

liabilitv

/ tDeficitl
llabilltv

s66.26
1?2.50

69.89
496.37

Financial Assumptions
As at 31st March 2024 As at31st March,2023 As at 3lst March, 2022

GratuiW Gratuity Gratuity
7.35%o.a. 6.81%n.a.
7.00q. D.a. 7.00% p.a.

DemoBmphic Assumptions
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March,2023 As at 31st March, 2022

Gratuity Cratu ity Gratuitu

Mortallty Rate
Normal RetlrementASe
Atrrlti^n Rrt.. hr<d nn.a. fq 6 r'l

100% of|ALM 2012-14
5B

1000%

100% oflALM 2012-14
58

10,00q6

100% oflALM 2012-14
58

10.00%

The sensitivity analysis above have been derermined based on a method that extrapolates the lmpad on defined benellt obllBation as a result ofreasonable changes

The sensitivity analysis above hav6 been detemined based on a merhod that extrapolafes the impact on defined b€nefit obliSaHon as a rcsult ofEesonable chantes

in key assumptioN ocdrrln8 at th€ eportiry period.

Particulars
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

G ratu ity Gratuity Gratuity

lmpact ofthe chanSe in discoutrt rate
lmpact due to increase of 0.5%
Impact due to d{rease of0.5
Impact ofthe chanfe ln slary mte
lmpact due to increase of1
Impad due to d&rease of 196

Impact of the chaDge ltr wlthdmw.l mt.
lmpact due to increase of5

4".rn dc.rc...^f<q

550.73

saz.69

596.78

s63.22
s67.64

446.0?

470.49

482.18

435.73

457.15
456.99

376.24

397.63

407.61

366.71

382.50
39r.23



Utkarsh lDdla Llmlted
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1st March, 2o24

Note ,+4 : trlnanc-lal lnstmments

Disclosures on Flnanclal lnstrum€nts

This section explains the judSements and estimates made in dete.minint the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recotnised and measured at fair value

and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values arr disclosed in the financial statements,

The details of material accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised,

in respect of each class of financial as5et, financial liability and rquity instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements.

of Flnanclal lnstruments lin

anticipate that the carryingamounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.
(b) Falr value hlenrchy

instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standards

Level 1: Level t hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices as at the reporting date.

possible on entity-specific esumates. Ifall significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are obseryable, tJre i$trument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the simifient inputs is not b6ed on obseryable market data, the iretnmetrt is included in level3.

The following uble provides the fair value measurement hierarchy ofthe ComDany's assets

Financlal Asset measured at falr value - recurlDg falr value manaSemetrts Level 1 L€vel 2 Level 3

Qlmdtadve dlsc{osues falr value meuueoelt h.leruchy for ssets s at 31st Milch 2024
Investments

QuaDdtadve dlsclosures falr value measurement hlemrchy for trsets as at 31st March 2023
Investments
Quandtadve dlsclosures falr value measurement hlenrchy for assets as at 31st March 2022
Investments

16

15

18.90

16.07

16.44

As at 31st March, 2024
(Amount in l)

As at 31st March,2023
(Amouot ln O

As at 1st Aprtl, 2022
(Amount ln q

Amordsed Costoctocl Amordsed Cost FVTPLFvTPL FvTPLOCI ADordsed Cost

23,019.46
661.21

r,871.85
496.43

103.35
22B.AO

17,955.9S

443.01
1,533.73

504.1S

127,91
4to.o2

24,366.79
350.54

t,793.il
202.84

tt7.35

20.665.64777.35 26,341.19 103.35127.97 27,723,26

17,372.86
3,005.32

1.00

21,549.73
270.73

26,921.44
Ltal.92

11,806.45

2,983,90

1.00

17,362.47
237.60

21,626.96
1,509.89

9,974.63

20,736.36

25,2r0.04
1,305.63

61,303.41 ss,6za.27s7,226.66

(i) lnvestments
(ii) Other Financial Assets

Current fi nancial assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables

[iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Bank Balance other than Above
(v) Otier Financial Assets

Total FlDancl,al
Non Curent financial Liabilities
(il Bomowings
(iil Lease Liabilities
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities
Cunent fi nancial liabilities
(il Borrowings
(ii) Lease Liabilities
(ii] Trade payable

(iiiJ Other fi trancial liabilities

Non current assets



Utkarsh lndia Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for tfie year ended 3 1st March 2024

Note 45 : Financial Risk Management Obiectives Atrd Policies

The Company is exposed to market rish credit risk and liquidity risk The company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The company's senior management is

Market rlsk

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate sensitivity

consequentlychangenetprofitbeforetaxbyapproximatelyRs. fortheyearendedDecember3l,2023

calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end balances are not necessarily representative ofthe average debt outstanding during the period.

(b) Foreign Currency Risks

Volatility in exchange.rates affects the Company's revenue from export markets and the costs ofimports.

in trade liabilities & trade assets denominated in foreign currency. Any weakening ofthe functional currency may impact the Company's cost of imports'

incurred additional debt and favourable movements in the exchange rates will conversely result in reduction in the Company's receivables in foreign currency.

Nature ofltem Currency

31st Mar( r.2024 3lst March, 2023 3lst Mar( |,2022

Value ln Forelgn
Currency

Value In INR
Value In forelgn

Curr€ncy
Value ln INR value In Foreign curr€ncy Valu€ In INR

Receivables (Net) I IS Dnller f$l $6 1.023.3 1 50.55 $ 1.22,9 18.35 100.30 54.47 0.0033

eceivables (Net) Euro f€l € 19,633.47 t2.28 € 10.066.67 8.96 € 0.46 0.0004

avable (Net) IIS Dollar ($l $tt,74,644.76 985.06 2.442.35 $5.44 0.(

Pavable (Net) Euro [€) € -24,500.00 (22.24) € -1.440.00 (1.30)

FCNRB IIS Dollar t$l $7.2t.674.28 605.20

credlt rlsks

receivables from customers and others. ln addition, credit risk arises from financial guarantees.

customer. The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness.



Utkarsh India Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

(i) Credit risk exposure

follows:

Particulars As at 31st March. 2024 As at 31st March,2023 As at 1st April, 2022

Non current financial assets

[i) Investments
(ii) Others
Current fi nancial assets

(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank Balance other than Above
(ivl Other Financial Assets

127.91
470.02

24,366.19
350.54

1,793.64
202.88

717.35
292.24

23,O19.46
567.21

1,871.85
496.43

103.35
22a.A0

77,955.95
443.01

L,533.73
504.15

Total Financial assets 27,ZSL.L7 26,458.55 2o,764.99

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March

Loss allowance atthe beginning
ofthe year
Add: Loss Allowance provided
during the year
Less: Loss Allowance reversed
during the year

267.80

23.98

206.57

55.29 205.51

Loss allowance at the end ofthe year 2AS.7A 261.80 206.51

Refer tie table below for

(B) Liquidity risk

to its debt and concluded it to be low.

As at 31st March, 2024 Less Than 1 Year More than 1 Year Total

Bonowings
Trade Payables

0ther Current Financial Liabilities

20,736

25,270.04
1,305.63

9,975

1

30,7L0.99
23,ZtO.04

1,306.63

As at 31st March, 2023 Less Than 1 Year More than 1 Year Total

Borrowings
Trade Payables

0ther Current Financial Liabilities

21,549.73

26,921.44
1,181.92

r1,372.86

1.m

32,9ZZ.S9
26,921.44

r,142.92

Not 46: Capltal Management
Riskmanagement

stakeholders, and - maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capial.

The Board of Directors has the primar responsibility to maintain a strong capital base and reduce the cost of capital through prudent management of deployed fnds and leveraging
opportunities in domestic and intemational financial markets so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development ofthe business.

regulatory environment and the requirements ofthe financial covenants.

equivalents. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
The table summarizes tle of the

Particulars As at 1st Aprll, 2022
fAmount in ll

As at 31st March, 2024
(Amount in 1)

As 31st march, 2023
(Amount in t)

Long Term borrowings
Short Term Bonowings
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net Debt

Equity
Net Debt to Equity ratio(Gearing Ratio)

7t,373
27,550

(661)

32,26t

32,165
1.003

11,806

77,362
(443)

24,726

27,336
1.051

9,975
20,736

t3s1l
30,360

37,358
0.813

CHARIERED

(iJ Equity includes Capital & all reserves ofthe company,

(ii) Impairment losses on financial assets



Utkarsh lndia Limited
Notes to thc Fitrancial StateDetrts for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Note 47 : Ratio Analysis

Definitions:

(a) Earning for available for debt serice = Proft before ties + Non-msh operating expenses like depreciation and other amortisations + Interest i other adiustments like loss on
sale ofFixed assets etc
@) Debt service = PAT + Depreciation + [nterest Cost + Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset

[cJ Average inventory = [Opening inventory balance + Closing inventory balatce) / 2

[d) Net sales = Revenue from Operations less Other Operating Revenue

[e) Average trade receivables = (Opening trade receivables balance + Closing trade receivables balance) / 2

[f) Net purchases = Gross Purchases - Purchase Return

[g) Average trade payables = [Opening trade payables balance + Closing trade payables balance) / 2
(h) Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities.
(i) Eaming before interest and taxes = Profit before exceptional items and tax + Finance costs - Other Income

[) Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worthi + Total Debt+ Defered Tax Liability

' Net worth means the aggregate ofequi$r share capital and other equity inclusive ofnet gain consequent to fair valuation of certain assets on transition to Ind AS excluding
intangible assets.

ft) lncome from inyestsnent= Net gain,/loss on sale/fair value changes ofinvestments

Sl.No Ratlos
As at 31st March,

2024
As at 31st March, 2023 Variation

Reason for
Variation

1

z

3

4

s

6

7

9

10

11

13

Current Ratlo
lCurrent Assets/Curent Llabllldesl

Debt-Equity Ratio
lDebt to EquiWI

Debt Seruice Covemge Ratio

[Eamings available for debt service /
(Current Maturities on Long TeIm Debt +
Interest Cost)l

Retum on Equity Ratlo

[Net profit after tax) / Avemge Total Equity]

lnventory Tumover mtio
[Revenue ftom sales ofproducts ,/ Avemge
lnventol1/ I

Trade Receivables Tumover Ratio

[Revenue from Opemtion / Avemge Tmde
Receivablel

Trade Payable Tumover Ratio

[Net Credit Purchases / Average Tmde Payablel

Net Capital Tumover mtio
[Revenue from operations/Working capital

Net Profit mtio
lProfit after Til /Revenue from Opemtionl

Return on Capital employed

[Profit Before interest, Tax & Exceptional item /
Total Equity + Total Debtsl

Retum on lnvestment
[Proflt on sale of lnvestrnents & Fal Value galn
on lnvesttnents/ lnvestment ln Long term &
short term lnvesunents]

EBITDA Margin
IEaming before
interest+til+depreciation+amortiation/
Revenue from Opemtion

EBT Margin
Eaming before tax/Revenue from Operation

1,29

o.a22

1.93

14.940/o

6.O2

9.61

7.OS

15.61

2.29o/o

t4.2SVo

9,670/o

5.18%

3.27o/o

1.29

7.O24

2.OO

16.22o/o

s.22

9.42

6.41

12.91

2.SOqh

ll.lTVo

13.400/0

1.77o/o

2.650/o

-0.51%

"19,680/o

-3.290/0

16.73o/o

lS.32o/o

1.930/o

9.980h

20.940/o

-8.29o/o

27.580/o

-27.430/0

8.53o/o

23-2OVo

No requirement ofproviding reason as

variation is below 25016

No requirement ofproviding reason as

variation is below 25Yo

No requirement of providing reason as

variation is below 25%

No requirement ofproviding reason as

variation is below 2596

No requirement of providing reason as

variation is below 25Yo

No requirement of providing reason as

variation is below 2570

No requirement ofproviding reason as

variation is below 2596

No requirement of providing reason as

variadon is below 2596

No requirement ofproviding reason as

variation is below 2596

Variation is primarily due to inrease in
profitability

Since the fair value gain ofinvestment
has decreased from last yr

No requirement ofproviding reason as

variation is below 25%

No requirement ofproviding reason as

variation is below 250lo

I

tz



Nobs to the FinaDcial Sbtem€trB for th€ ye.r etrded 3lst March, 2024

4t.1 Amount reo3nlaad ln Profft or to$ YearErdcd
3k M.rdr- m2a

Ycar Endcd

M.rch.20Zl
3ln

CuftentTox:

lncoma Tax fortheycar
Charge/lcredit) in resped ofCurrent Taxfor earlier yeaE

Total Orrant Tar
D.t frd fax:
Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences
lmpact ofchange ln tax rate

Total Dcfcrad Tax

TotalTax Expensea

1,896.85

114-m
\342.21

2,0r0.t5

204.72

taa,-2!

$,oa7.421

20t.72 (L0E7.42)

2,215.57 294.A

lin
4t.2 Amount r*otnisd in Other Comprehensive lncome

Ycd End.d
th MarEh.202{

Ye., Ended

IhcTax (Charge) / Oedit arisinS on ln@mc and Erp€nsr rccoSniscd in Other Comprehensive lncomc is asfollows:

Mr.r
On lffis oiot |9il| not be Reclo$if.d to Prolt o. L6

Rameaiurcmcnt Gains/(tosss) m Mncd 8enefit Pl.ns

Equfty lnsbuments t trough OCI

Torl

8.52 (0.75)

6.52 (0.7!

Yaa. Ended Ycr. Erded
11( Mrr.h.I2l

The incometarexpenrefortheyear @n be r4oncjlcdtotha ac@unting profit asfollrys:
Profft betor€ bx

Expens$ dis.llowed

Effect oft.x relatlngto erpenses allowed on payment barls
Eff.d of incom. notbrble
Tarat differential rde
Odglnatlon and ReveBal otTemporary Dlfferen@s

lncoma Tar ralated to eadier yeaE

Other differences

Tax axpcntG

7,437.70

7,A1L.92

.75

104.65

(7s.87)

204.72

114.00

(e8.51)

5,121.33

1,288.94

14.94

1t,087.421

78.33

2,2t9.57 294.n

48,4 The Ex rate used for the year 2023-24 and 2022-23 reconciliations .bove is th€ corporate br rate ol 25.16896 (22* + surcharge @ 10r( and eduetion @ss @ 496). Ihe
effdlve tax rete ls 26.071112022-23: 25.61%).

Raconriliation of cftadivc tax nta

25.L6Ay.



Utkarsh lndia Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Note :49 Leases Liabilityl

(i) The Company's significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for buildings (comprising licensed properties,

residential premises, office premises, stores, warehouses etc.). These arrangements generally range between 4 years and 25 years.

The lease arrangements have extension/termination options exercisable by either parties which may make the assessment of lease

term uncertain. While determining the lease term, all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an

extension option, or not exercise a termination option are considered.

(ii) The amount of ROU Assets and Lease Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet are disclosed in Note 5 and Note 20 and24
respectively. The total cash outflow for leases for the year is Rs. 270.73 lakhs (31st March, 2023 - Rs. 237.60 lakhs).

(iii) The undiscounted maturities of lease liabilities over the remalning lease term is as follows
tn

The rate for discounting of lease liability is 9.O75%.

As at l April, 2022Term As at 31 March, 2024 As at 31 March, 2023

1st year s66.2L 270.73 237.60

589.55 555.21 270.732nd year

585.78 589.55 555.2t3rd year

307.08 585.78 589.554th year

585.785th year 3r4.23 307.08

7,913.56Beyond 5 years 7,292.25 7,606.48

OUMERED



Utkarsh lndia Limited
Notes to the Flnancial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Note 50: First- time adoption of lnd AS

The audited financial statements of the Company as of and for the years ended 31st March, 2O24, and 31st March, 2023 was prepared as per Companies

(AccountinS Standards) Rules, 2021, as amended, and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as "Previous GAAP"). These

financial statements is prepared as per the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other provisions of the Companies Act,

2013 (hereinafter referred to as "lnd AS").

The accounting policies set out in Note t have been applied in preparing the Financial Statement for the years ended 31st March, 2024, and as at the

transition date i.e., 1st April, 2022.fhe Company has followed the accountinS policy choices (both mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions availed as

per lnd AS 101) on transition date i.e., 1st April, 2022 while preparing Financial Statements as of and for the year ended 31st March, 2024. Accordingly,

suitable restatement adjustments are made in the financial statements as of and for the year ended 3lst March, 2024 and on the transition date i.e., 1st April,

2072.

An explanation of how the transition from Previous GAAP to lnd AS has affected the Company's Financial Statements is set out in the following tables and

noteq-
Exemptlons and exceptlons avalled
ln preparing Financial Statements under lnd AS, the Company has applied the below mentioned optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions on the

transition date.

A, lnd AS optional exemptions availed
(al Property, Plant and Equipment and lntantible Assets

B. lnd AS mandatory exceptlons
(a) Estlmates

As per lnd AS 101, an entit/s estimates in accordance with lnd AS at the date of transition to lnd AS and at the end of the comparative period presented in the

entity's first lnd AS financial statements, as the case may be,should be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with the previous

GAAP unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. However, the estimates should be adjusted to reflect any differences in

accounting policies.

(b) Classlflcation and measurement of flnanclal assets

lnd AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the date of transition. Further, the

standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if
restrospective application is impracticable.

(al Reconclliation between equity as per the audited financial statements prepared under Prevlous GAAP and financial stataments prepared under lnd As

{in

As at

1st April, 2022
Sl No Particulars

As at
31st March,

2023

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(e)

(h)

(i)

0)
(k)

(r)

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Equlty as per the audlted flnanclal statements

Fair value Adjustments in lnvestments- Equity shares

Actuarial Loss transferred from Retained Earnings

Fair Value Adjustments in lnvestments- Bullions

Fair Value Adjustments of Freehold Land measured through Other Comprehensive lncome

Actuarial Loss transferred to OCI Reserve

Allowances for Credit Losses

Past Service Cost

Current Service Cost

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

Actuarial Gain (OCl)

Deferred Tax

Depreiiation on ROU Asset (Lease)

Depreciation on ROU/ Prepaid Lease Rent

Finance lnome on Security Deposit

Reversal of Contractual Rent Payment taken as expense in IGAAP

lnterest Cost on Employee benefit (Gratuity)

Finance Expense (Lease)

26,427.96

6.07

53.38

4,574.73

(261.80)

(346.e1)

(8e.51)

'179.38

87.66

(1 50.es)

(47 82)
'14.53

237 60

(14.31)

(292.15)

176.43

11,052.17)

22,397.74

6.44

39.01

4,574.73

(206.52)

(346.e1)

(3e.72)

30,377.80 25,549.03



Utkarsh lndia Limited
Notes to the Flnancial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(b) Reconciliation between Profit as per the audited financial statements prepared under Previous GAAP and financial statements prepared under lnd AS

tin

(cl Reconciliation between the Statement of cash flow as per the audited financial statements under the Previous GAAP and the financial statements as per

{in

Particulars
For the year ended
31st March, 2023

5,465.56

(28.e0)

292.15

(1 81.s4)

64.1 1

1 98.81

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(c)

(h)

Proflt as per the audlted flnanclal statements

lncome from Security Deposit

lnterest on lease obligations

Fair Value

Remeasurement of defined benefits employee obligations recognised in OCI

Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Gain/(Loss) on non current investments classified as FVTPL

lncome tax expense

lncome tax
Proflt as per the restated flnanclal statements

Remeasurement of defined benefits employee obligations recognlsed In OCI

Gain/(Loss) on non current investments classified as FWocl
lncome tax expense

5,t2L.34
2.22

294.79

4,828.77

(i)

0)
Total comprehensive income as per the restated financial statements

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

lnd AsPrevious GAAP Adjustments
(2.544.64\ 3,218.645,763.28

(5.002.92) 499.1 I (4.503.74\
Net cash flow from operating activities

Net cash flow from investing activities

Net cash flow from financinp activities ?29.81) 2,233.10 '1,503.29

Net lncrease/ Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 30.55 187.65 2L8.20

cltAf,tERE0



l,rtkarsh lndia Limited

Notes to the Flnanclal Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Notes:

(l) teases

Under previous GAAP, lease rentals were required to be recognised as expenses in the year of accrual.On transition, the Company recognised a lease liability

measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments and the Company has applied modified retrospective approach with ROU asset equal to lease

lla bility.

ln adopting lnd AS 116, the Company has applied the below practical expedients available in lnd AS 101:

On transition to lnd AS the Company has recognised right of use assets and lease liabilities as on the transition date and in the subsequent periods for all the

leases other than short term leases or leases of low value assets for which exemption from recognition has been availed. Pursuant to recoSnition of ROU

assets and lease liabilities, the Company has recognised depreciation ofthe ROU assets and interest on lease liabilities and reversed the rent expense charged

to the Statement of Profit and Loss under the previous GAAP, as the same is adjusted against derecognition of lease liability. The net effect of reversal of rent

expense and recognition of depreciation of ROU asset and interest of lease of lease liabilities has reduced the reported amount of equity and profit and loss

for the period.

(lll Allowances for expected credit losses

Under previous GAAP, the Company provides for provision based on the pre-determined policl which was on the ageing of the debtors. Under lnd AS, the

Company recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss.

(iii) Remeasurment ot deflned benefit obligations

Under lnd AS, remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) are recognised in other comprehensive income. Under previous GAAP, the Company

recognised such remeasurements in profit or loss. However, this has no impact on the total comprehensive income and total equity as on April 7,2022 or as

on March 31, 2023. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

(iv) Financial lnstrument
Financial lnstruments, equity instruments and mutual funds in particular are required to be fair valued and changes in fair value being recognised in profit or
loss or other comprehensive income, as applicable.

NOTE

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I

r FOOTNOTES

To comply with the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006, certain account balances have been regrouped as per the format prescribed under
Fair valuation of investrnents
lnvestment in equity instruments have measured at Fair Value through Profit & Loss.

Expected Credit Loss

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (Profit and Loss).

Deferred tax as per balance sheet approach
Financial lnstruments, equity instruments and mutual funds in particular are required to be fairvalued and changes in fairvalue being recoSnised in

Foreign Exchange Difference
Defined benefit liabilities
Under IND AS, Remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on

Lease Remeasurement
Lease working and Remeasurement has been done as per lndAS 116.

Prepald lease Rent

As per lndAs 109, the amount of Refundable Security Deposit paid against Lease up to the date of transition is amortised/ discounted to Present Value.
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Note 51 : Disclosure requirement under IND AS

i) Expenditure in Foreign Currency (on accrual basis) ( t in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March,2O24 As at 31st March,2023
Import of Capital goods
lmport of Raw Material
Travelling expenses
Commission
Others

2t.37
18,147.9L

tt5.63
11.53

105.39

199.51
11,502.15

75.49
50.24
53.53

ii) Earnings in Foreign Currency (on accrual basis) ( t in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March?O?4 As at 31st March2O23
Exports 3334.72 4978.52

Note 52: Disclosure of Transactions with Struckoff Companies

The Company did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act,

2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year
Note 53 : Investor Education and Protection Fund
There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

Note 54: Other Disclosures

Additional Regulatory Information

Amended Schedule tll requires additional regulatory information to be provided in financial statements.

a) Details of Benami Property held : The Company does not hold any Benami Property and hence there were no

proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibitions) Act, 19BB and the Rules made there under, hence no disclosure is required to be given as such.

b) Wilful Defaulter: The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter as at the date of the balance sheet or on the
date ofapproval ofthe financial statements, hence no disclosure is required as such.

c) Registration of Charges or Satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC) : There are no charges against the

companies which are yet to be registered or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, hence no

disclosures are required as such.

d) Compliance with number of layers of companies : The Company does not have any investment in any downstream
companies for which it has to comply with the number of layers prescribed under Clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies
Acr,2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number oflayers) Rules, 2017, hence no disclosure is required as such.

e) Title Deeds Held in the name of the Company : Title Deeds of Freehold land and Building are in the name of the
Company.

I Advance, loan or lnvestment in Ultimate Beneficiaries through intermediaries:
i) No funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("lntermediaries"J, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
ii) No funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party f"Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

OUf,IERED
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Notes to the Financial Statements as at and for the ended 3lst 2024

Utilisation of Borrowings from Banks/FI - The Company for the specific
for which it was taken at the balancesheet date.

h) Undisclosed Income - The Company has no undisclosed transaction which has been surrended or disclosed as

during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

i) Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment - The Company has not revalued its Property Plant and
during the Year.

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency: The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or
Currency during the financial year, hence disclosure requirements for the same is not applicable.

k)Granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties (as defined under Companies Act 2013) either
severally or iointly with any other person, The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans to
its promotors, directors, KMPs and related parties during the year

Figures of previous years have been regrouped / rearranged / rectified wherever necessary to make them comparable
current periods fi gures.

As per our report of even For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ForDKChhajer&Co.
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